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The rebranding ini�a�ve commences with a Group-level transi�on, marked 
by the unveiling of the new brand iden�ty "Heidelberg Materials" on 20 
September 2022, replacing HeidelbergCement. "Heidelberg" remains 
synonymous with con�nuity and market leadership, while "Materials" 
replaces "Cement" and signifies an innova�ve por�olio of sustainable and 
intelligent building materials, along with digital solu�ons. Two major 
shareholders of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited have also 
undergone a name transforma�on to "Heidelberg Materials Netherlands 
Holding B.V" and "Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH". 

The proposed change of the Company's name from 'HeidelbergCement 
Bangladesh Limited' to 'Heidelberg Materials Bangladesh PLC' will be 
presented for members' approval at the Annual General Mee�ng scheduled 
for 8 May 2024. This change was approved by the Board during the mee�ng 
held on 6 March 2024.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BECOMES 
HEIDELBERG MATERIALS



HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited offers Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC), Portland Composite Cement 
(PCC), and the newly introduced Blast Furnace Cement/Composite Cement  (MPC) under two trusted and very 
dis�nguished cement brands namely “RubyCement” and “ScanCement”. These two renowned brands hold 
unparalleled recogni�on in the market, with construc�on experts acknowledging and consistently ranking us at 
the pinnacle for our unwavering commitment to product quality and suitability across various establishments, 
be they large or small. We have supplied cement to numerous flagship projects in the country, establishing 
ourselves as a proud partner in the realiza�on of these significant development endeavors. Our Cement is very 
prevalent because of its:-

Ensure strong concrete Cas�ng
Enhanced Long-term Strength
Minimal Chloride Content
Resilience Against Sulphate A�ack
Consistent Quality
Impermeable and Denser Concrete
Cohesive Mix and Superb Rheology



Date of ra�ng : 27 March 2024
Validity : Up to 16 May 2025

LONG TERM
 AA2 (Lr)

SHORT TERM
ST-2

OUTLOOK
 STABLE

Credit Ra�ng Agency of Bangladesh Ltd. (“CRAB”) has affirmed the long term ra�ng of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh 
Limited (“HCBL”) at AA2 (Pronounced as Double A Two) and the short term ra�ng  at ST-2 based on the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on 31 December 2023, bank liability posi�ons up to 31 January 2024 
and other relevant quan�ta�ve as well as qualita�ve informa�on up to the date of ra�ng declara�on.



All shareholders of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (HCBL)
Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC)
Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC (DSE)
Chi�agong Stock Exchange PLC (CSE)
Bangladesh Investment Development Authority (BIDA)
Na�onal Board of Revenue (NBR)
Bangladesh Bank (BB) &
All other stakeholders of HCBL

Annual Report-2023 of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (HCBL) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Dear Sir(s), 
We are pleased to share HCBL's Annual Report for the year 2023, containing audited financial statements, including the 
statement of financial posi�on, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, 
and statement of cash flows for the year ending 31 December 2023, along with accompanying notes. 

General review of this report, unless explained otherwise, is based on the financials of the ‘HCBL’.
 

Best regards,
Yours Sincerely,
For HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited

Md. Emdadul Haque CMA FCA
Company Secretary

Le�er of 
Transmi�al
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06 March 2024 (Wednesday)
Release of price-sensi�ve informa�on to regulators and Shareholders.

15 April 2024 (Monday)
Circula�on of No�ce of 35th Annual General Mee�ng.

22 April 2024 (Monday)
Issuance of Annual Report-2023.

08 May 2024 (Wednesday)
Day of 35th Annual General Mee�ng.

35th Annual General Mee�ng

02 April 2024 (Tuesday)
Record date instead of the book closure period.

Record Date

Q1 on 27 April 2023 (Thursday)
Unaudited results for the 1st quarter ended 31 March 2023.

Q2 on 25 July 2023 (Tuesday)
Unaudited results for the half-year ended 30 June 2023.

Q3 on 23 October 2023 (Monday)
Unaudited results for the 3rd quarter ended 30 September 2023.

Annual on 06 March 2024 (Wednesday)
Audited results for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Disclosure of Quarterly Results

Financial
Calendar
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Global Presence

151 YEARS OF EXPERIENCE

51,000 EMPLOYEES

€21.2 BILLION ANNUAL TURNOVER

3,000 LOCATIONS WORLDWIDE

HM GROUP
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Market Strategy:
We deliver long-term financial 
performance through opera�onal 
excellence, dedica�on, and 
openness for change.

Customer Philosophy:
Be stronger together and push 
forward. We deepen partnerships 
with our customers and other 
stakeholders.

Quality Standard:
We want to be leader in the industry 
on the path to carbon neutrality.

Commitment to 
Environmental Protec�on:
Our future needs solu�ons that last. 
That’s what we offer. Reliable and 
sustainable materials. Let’s be the 
leader that turns our industry 
CO2-neutral once and for all.

Commitment to Innova�on:
Our future needs crea�vity. Let’s use 
our freedom to go in new direc�ons. 
Inven�veness knows no hierarchy. A 
great idea can come from anywhere 
and anyone. Own it and push it.

HCBL stands as a leading manufacturer of top-notch cement in Bangladesh, proudly affiliated with the Heidelberg 
Materials Group, formerly known as HeidelbergCement Group based in Germany. The group has 151 years of 
experience producing cement and operates in more than 50 countries. Moreover, it has around 51,000 employees 
who work at 3,000 produc�on sites and its reported annual turnover is equivalent to €21.2 billion. In Bangladesh, it 
represents two reputed brands namely “RubyCement” and “ScanCement”.

In 1998, HeidelbergCement Group established its presence in Bangladesh by se�ng up a floa�ng terminal with 
onboard packing facili�es in the port of Cha�ogram and by distribu�ng the cement to the key markets of Dhaka and 
Cha�ogram. In 1999 the Group further strengthened its posi�on in Bangladesh and built a Greenfield manufacturing 
plant near Dhaka namely “ScanCement Interna�onal Limited” with an installed capacity of 0.750 million tons per year. 
In 2000, HeidelbergCement Group bought a minority posi�on in a Cha�ogram based company namely “Chi�agong 
Cement Clinker Grinding Co. Limited (CCCGCL)” quickly followed by the acquisi�on of a controlling stake. The plant in 
Cha�ogram has an installed capacity of 0.7 million tons per annum. 

In 2003, the two companies were amalgamated, and the Company’s name was changed to HeidelbergCement 
Bangladesh Limited. 

Having pioneered Portland Composite Cement (PCC) in 2004, the Company has expanded its product offerings in 2023 
by introducing Blast Furnace Cement/Composite Cement (MPC) in the Bangladesh market. The Company also 
produces other types of cement namely Ordinary Portland Cement (OPC). 

The Company further increased the capacity of its Kanchpur plant by se�ng up another grinding unit of 0.45 million 
tons per year that was commissioned in 2008. The Company has also increased the capacity of its Cha�ogram plant 
by installing another grinding unit of 0.750 million tons per year which has been in opera�on since the end of 2011 
and the Company inaugurated the cement mill in 2012. Both the plants are cer�fied according to the globally 
applicable environmental management system standards-14001. In 2013, the Company installed another Cement Silo 
with a capacity of 8,000MT in its Kanchpur plant as a part of its Silo project which will help to increase the produc�vity 
of the Company. The Company has also increased the capacity of its Kanchpur Plant by installing another grinding unit 
of 0.472 million tons per year which is in opera�on from the end of 2019.

In 2021, the two subsidiary companies namely Emirates Cement Bangladesh Limited and Emirates Power Company 
Limited were amalgamated with HCBL.

in Brief

Our Vision, Mission & Values

Corporate Image:
Challenging the status quo and pushing 
the boundaries of what’s possible.

Business Culture:
Our future needs strong players. Let’s 
become even be�er partners for our 
customers. Their success is our success. 
We solve their problems. Even before 
they arise. Build and maintain strong 
partnerships with customers and key 
stakeholders.

Employee Policy:
Listen and respond to your customers’ 
need in a �mely manner. Focus on 
results and execute tasks efficiently. Set 
high standards for yourself and your 
teams. Strive for excellence. Integra�on 
of purpose in HR strategy & processes, 
enhancing employer a�rac�veness 
through external communica�on.

Vision
Mission

Values



1998
HeidelbergCement group established its presence in 
Bangladesh by se�ng up a floa�ng terminal with 
onboard packing facili�es in the port of Cha�ogram.

1999
A Greenfield manufacturing plant was built near Dhaka namely 
“ScanCement Interna�onal Limited (SIL)” with an installed capacity 
of 0.750 million tons per year.

2000
The acquisi�on of “Chi�agong Cement Clinker Grinding 
Co. Limited (CCCGCL)” was completed.

2004 HCBL has diversified its product range by introducing Portland 
Composite Cement (PCC) into the market.

2017 The acquisi�on of 99.99% shares of Meghna Energy 
Limited was successfully done.

2020 Meghna Energy Limited was successfully amalgamated 
with HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited.

2023 HCBL has diversified its product range by introducing Blast 
Furnace Cement/Composite Cement  (MPC)  into the market.

2003 The SIL & the CCCGCL were amalgamated, and the Company’s name 
was changed to HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited.

2013 HCBL inaugurated another Silo having capacity of 8,000MT in its 
Kanchpur plant.

2019
HCBL inaugurated another grinding unit of 0.472 million tons per 
year in its Kanchpur plant which is in opera�on.
The acquisi�on of 100% shares of Emirates Cement 
Bangladesh Limited and Emirates Power Company Limited.

2021
Emirates Cement Bangladesh Limited and Emirates Power Company 
Limited were amalgamated with HeidelbergCement Bangladesh 
Limited.

2012 HCBL inaugurated another grinding unit of 0.750 million tons 
per year in its Cha�ogram plant which is in opera�on.

2008
HCBL increased the capacity of its Kanchpur plant by se�ng up 
another grinding unit of 0.450 million tons per year that was 
commissioned.
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Pres�gious Completed Projects

Padma Mul�purpose Bridge
The 6150 meters long Padma Bridge is a mul�purpose road-rail 
bridge across the Padma River in Bangladesh. It connects 
Louhajong, Munshiganj to Shariatpur and Madaripur, linking the 
south-west of the country to the northern and eastern regions. 
Padma Bridge was the most challenging construc�on project in the 
history of Bangladesh. It is our pride that the main structure of the 
bridge was built using ScanCement. 
Construc�on Company: China Railway Major Bridge Engineering 
Company Ltd.

Construc�on Company: China Railway Major Bridge Engineering 
Company Ltd.

Karnaphuli Tunnel, Cha�ogram
The Karnaphuli Tunnel, also known as the Bangabandhu Sheikh 
Mujibur Rahman Tunnel, is located below the Karnaphuli River, 
connec�ng the two banks of the river. The 
Dhaka-Cha�ogram-Cox's Bazar Highway is connected through this 
tunnel. The length of the Karnaphuli tunnel is 3.43 km. The 
Karnaphuli Tunnel is the very first tunnel in Bangladesh's 
landscape and the first-ever under-river tunnel for road 
communica�on in South Asia. It is our pride that RubyCement is a 
part of this milestone project.

Bijoy Sarani-Tejgaon Railway Overpass
The 3rd flyover in Dhaka with a length of 669 Meters was opened by 
the Honorable Prime Minister of Bangladesh to general public in 
April 2010.

Construc�on Company: RP construc�on

Lalon Shah (Pakshi) Bridge
Lalon Shah (Pakshi) Bridge, one of the country's largest bridges 
with a length of 1.8 km, spans the river Padma at the 
Pakshi-Bheramara point and was opened to traffic in May 2004.

Mohakhali Flyover
The flyover has a total length of 1.12 km with a total 19 nos. of 
span of pre-stressed segmental box girder profile. The flyover was 
opened for all in November 2004. 
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Third Karnaphuli Bridge
The most beau�ful bridge of the country with a length of 950 
meters over the river Karnaphuli to connect the southern part of 
Cha�ogram with the rest of the country was opened for all in 
September 2010 by the Honorable Prime Minister of Bangladesh.

Shah Amanat Interna�onal Airport
Shah Amanat Interna�onal Airport is the second largest airport of 
Bangladesh. It was constructed in early 1940s and had been used 
during World War II. Following several changes in construc�on 
plans the government took the ini�a�ve to re-build the airport 
around the late 90s.

North South University
One of the pioneers in the private universi�es of the country, 
North South University’s new building was opened for academic 
use in May 2009. Constructed by ABC-Monico JV, the 13-storied 
building is on the 5.65 acres premises in Bashundhara R/A. 

Mayor Mohammed Hanif Flyover
It is the longest flyover of the country as well as about 11 km long 
flyover in Dhaka which has connected 30 districts.

Cha�ogram Port Flyover
The Government took steps to build the first ever flyover of 
Cha�ogram connec�ng New Mooring container terminal and 
Custom House in October 2008. The length of the flyover is 978 
meters. 

Tongi-Bhairab Double Rail Track
64 km double-line railway tracks from Tongi to Bhairab on 
Dhaka-Cha�ogram and Dhaka-Sylhet route, has made train 
journey more smooth, speedy & safe. 

Construc�on Company: China Major Bridge Engineering Co. Ltd. 
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Summit Meghnaghat Power Plant
335/305 MW Dual Fuel Combined Cycle power plant at 
Meghnaghat, Narayangonj. 

Construc�on Company: China Na�onal Electric Engineering Co.

New Mooring Container Terminal (Phase 2)
The implementa�on of back up facili�es behind berth No. 4 & 5 of 
New Mooring Container Terminal of Cha�ogram port started on 
40 acres area. 

Construc�on Company: Project Builders Limited. 

Akhtaruzzaman Flyover, Cha�ogram
The Construc�on works of 5.2-kilometre-long Muradpur-Lalkhan 
Bazar flyover, as part of the massive development work for 
Cha�ogram. The flyover was opened for traffic movement in the 
mid of June, 2017.

Police Plaza Concord Shopping Mall, Dhaka
Police Plaza Concord Shopping Mall is the mul�storied commercial 
building is a centrally air-condi�oned shopping complex and 
offices are equipped with modern facili�es. This plaza was jointly 
built by Bangladesh Police Welfare Trust and Concord Group 
adjacent to Ha�rjheel on the way to Gulshan Circle 1. Its basic 
founda�on is 16-storey and at present is 12-storey. It is 
constructed on an acre of land by the Concord Engineers and 
Construc�on Ltd.

Dhaka Cha�ogram Four Lane Highway
200 KM of Dhaka-Cha�ogram Four Lanes Highway has increased 
the efficiency of the road transport and op�mized the u�liza�on of 
Cha�ogram port. 
Construc�on company: Sinohydro Corpora�on Ltd. 
Brand used: RubyCement (Exclusive)



Other Pres�gious Completed Projects:

Other On-going Projects:
Cox’s Bazar Runway Extension
Cha�ogram Outer City Ring Road
Dohazari-Cox’s Bazar Railway Project, Cha�ogram
Kalurghat-Chaktai Road Construc�on Project
Hilton Hotel, Dhaka
Cha�ogram Elevated Expressway

Mirershorai Economic Zone Embankment Project, Cha�ogram
150 MW Mirershorai Economic Zone Power Plant
Cross Border Network Road and Bridge Construc�on Project at Dohazari and Chakaria
Modunaghat Water Treatment Plant, Cha�ogram
Cox’s Bazar Airport Development Project, Cox’s Bazar
Apex Tannery Project, Savar, Dhaka
Sylhet Railway Sta�on, Sylhet
Seagull Hotel, Cox’s Bazar
Le Méridien Dhaka, Dhaka 
Tista Bridge, Rangpur
Nafi Tower, Dhaka
Japan Garden City, Dhaka
Banani 11 No. Bridge, Dhaka
Radisson Blu Cha�ogram Bay View
Shanta Forum, Dhaka

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 09





Compara�ve Financial Highlights

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 11



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 12

Opera�ng Results (Taka in Million)

Net Revenues

Gross Profit

Income From Opera�ons

EBITDA

EBIT

Net Income/(loss)

Contribu�on to Na�onal Exchequer

HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited Consolidated

 16,767

 1,075

-21

 523

-21

-233

3,110

17,956

2,068

887

1,364

845

459

3,687

 215

 8,780

 5,386

 3,394

-1,570

 570

 4,230

1,231

12,622

8,825

3,797

-1,268

-203

4,261

 10,120

 56.50

13,533

56.50

-4.1

 1.0

 155.4

 60.1

 179.1

8.1

2.50

223.38

67.20

239.50

0.65:1

0.20:1

0.85:1

0.66:1

33.4

8.4

1.9

40.0

11.3

1.4

6.4%

-0.1%

12%

4.9%

14,328

1,598

705

1,136

670

475

4,149

1,116

9,235

5,471

3,763

-981

413

4,878

15,391

56.50

8.4

2.6

163.4

66.6

272.4

0.77:1

0.49:1

35.9

7.1

1.6

11.2%

4.9%

12.4%

3.7%

9.7%

1.4%

11.6%

3.2%

10.2%

2.0%

11.7

8.9

1.2

13.2

6.7

1.2

14.9

8.3

1.2

10.9

5.7

1.1

0.74:1

0.41:1

0.77:1

0.31:1

0.75:1

0.41:1

0.87:1

0.43:1

-0.1

2.0

161.8

69.6

149.6

-4.6

0

178.5

68.7

166.7

-1.4

2.0

167.3

68.1

149.6

-3.3

0

192.7

71.9

166.7

8,453

56.50

9,419

56.50

8,453

56.50

9,419

56.50

998

9,144

5,210

3,934

-967

1,007

5,484

202

10,085

6,204

3,881

-925

2,041

6,124

1,499

9,452

5,604

3,848

-994

995

5,419

263

10,891

6,830

4,061

-634

2,138

6,115

10,521

1,301

386

834

373

-5

2,417

11,927

1,154

172

597

163

-258

3,401

11,681

1,355

377

898

365

-81

2,678

11,986

1,228

238

733

229

-187

3,460

Financial Results (Taka in Million)

Net Cash Provided by Opera�ng Ac�vi�es

Total Assets

Total Liabili�es

Shareholders Equity

Net Working Capital

Net Borrowings

Capital Employed

Share informa�on

Market Capitaliza�on (Million)

Issued Ordinary Shares (Million)

Per Share Data (Taka)

Primary Earnings (loss) Per Share

Dividend Per Share

Book Value Per Share

Net Assets Value Per Share

Market Value Per Share

Financial Ra�o

Liquidity Ra�os

Opera�ng Ra�os

Account Receivable Turnover Ra�o

Inventory Turnover Ra�o

Asset Turnover Ra�o

Profitability Ra�os

Gross Margin Ra�o

Opera�ng Income Ra�o

Current Ra�o

Quick Ra�o

2023

Compara�ve Financial Highlights

2022 2021 2020 2019 2020 2019



Compara�ve Financial Highlights

Profitability Ra�os

Net Income Ra�o

Return on Assets Ra�o

Return on Equity Ra�o

Net Opera�ng Cash Flow to Net Profit Ra�o

2022

-1.4%

-2.7%

-6.9%

-92.0%

HeidelbergCement Bangladesh LImited Consolidated

0.0%

-0.1%

-0.1%

2019

-2.2%

-2.6%

-6.7%

-78.3%

-0.7%

-0.9%

-2.1%

-1,854.2%

2019

-1.6%

-1.7%

-4.6%

-140.7%

-4.1

-43.4

0.01

-24.2%

8.1

29.5

0.01

31%

-1.4

-104.6

0.01

-139.8%

-3.3

-50.5

0.0

0.0%

-0.3

1.50

0.00

2.93

2.30

0.00

2.2

1.18

0.00

5.0

1.46

0.00

1.8

1.31

0.00

7.0

1.54

0.00

 0.17
 8.85
 0.06
-5.5
343

-0.05
23.19
-0.02
10.8
339

2021

3.3%

5.1%

12.6%

234.8%

8.4

32.4

0.0

30.9%

10.7

1.3

0.00

0.1
341.9

0.0
9.7

343

0.26
6.12
0.11
-0.1
274

0.53
17.24

0.20
-4.2
273

0.26
4.86
0.11

0.6
349

0.53
19.59

0.20
-1.2
374

Stockholder Ra�os

Earnings per Share

Price Earnings (P/E) Ra�o

Dividend yield Ra�o

Dividend Payout Ra�o

Solvency Ra�os

Times Interest Earned Ra�o

Debt to Equity Ra�o

Bad Debt Ra�o

Other Ra�os
Net Gearing
EBITDA To Net Interest Cover (Times)
Net Borrowing to Assets
Return on Capital Employed (In Percentage)
Number of Employees

-0.1

-1,719.3

0.01

-2,298.5%

-4.6

-36.4

0.0

0.0%

2023

2.6%

3.6%

12.1%

268%
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Performance at a Glance in 2023

2023
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Opera�ng Profit
BDT in Thousand

886,830
Net Profit A�er Tax
BDT in Thousand

459,410
EPS
BDT 

8.13
NOCF
Per Share BDT

21.78

NAV
Per Share BDT

67.20

Profit Before Tax
BDT in Thousand

786,615

Gross Profit
BDT in Thousand

2,068,374

Revenue
BDT in Thousand

17,955,715



Performance at a Glance 2023

Net asset value per share (BDT)

Return on asset (%)

Return on capital employed (%)

Contribu�on to na�onal exchequer (Millioan)

Produc�on and sales (MT) Dividend (%)
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Including Emirates Cement Bangladesh Limited, the produc�on and the sales of 2021
were 2,527,692 MT and 2,525,229 MT respec�vely.
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Earnings Per Share Net Assets (Million)

Total Revenue (Million) Opra�ng Profit (Million)

Net profit before tax (Million) Net profit/(loss) a�er tax (Million)

Performance at a Glance 2023
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-258

-4.92

475 459

-233

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

1000

500

0

-500

500

400

300

200

100

0

-100

-200

-300

17
2

38
6

70
5 88

7

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

18000

16000
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Registered Office: Mouza: Tatki, P.O.- Jatramora, Union: Tarabow, P.S.- Rupgonj, Dist: Narayangonj
Corporate Office: Symphony (6th & 7th Floor), Plot No. SE(F) 9, Road No. 142, Gulshan Avenue (South), Dhaka-1212

No�ce of 35th Annual General Mee�ng (AGM)

A physical and virtual mee�ng through Hybrid System
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Corporate Informa�on

Mohammad Mohiuddin Kawsher

               Jebun Index Trade Centre (8th Floor), 
191 Shaheed Syed Nazrul Islam Sarani, 04 Bijoy Nagar, Dhaka-1000

Roberto Callieri

Bank Asia Ltd.

U�ara Bank PLC.
One Bank PLC.
Dutch-Bangla Bank PLC. Brac Bank PLC.

Prime Bank PLC.
Southeast Bank PLC.

Na�onal Credit & Commerce Bank PLC.
Dhaka Bank PLC.

United Commercial Bank PLC.

. .



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 23

†Kv¤úvbxi bvg t nvB‡WjevM©wm‡g›U evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW

         †Reyb Bb‡W· †UªW †m›Uvi (8Zg †d¬vi), 191 knx` ‰mq` bRiæj 

Bmjvg miwY, 04 weRq bMi, XvKv-1000

wewUGgwm feb (7-8Zg †d¬vi), 7-9 KviIqvb evRvi, XvKv-1215

y

KvRx †gvt gvCbyÏxb mv‡qg

gynv¤§` gywnDÏxb KvDQvi

b¨vkbvj †µwWU GÛ Kgvm© e¨vsK wcGjwm.

XvKv e¨vsK wcGjwm.

e¨vsK Gwkqv wjt

wcÖwgqvi e¨vsK wcGjwm.

mvD_B÷ e¨vsK wcGjwm.DËiv e¨vsK wcGjwm.

Iqvb e¨vsK wcGjwm.

WvP&-evsjv e¨vsK wcGjwm.

eª¨vK e¨vsK wcGjwm.

BDbvB‡UW Kg©vwkqvj e¨vsK wcGjwm.

. .



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 24

www.heidelbergcementbd.com

FEEL FREE TO LEARN MORE AT
GET COMPLETE ANNUAL REPORT-2023



Board of Directors

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 25



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 26

Roberto Callieri
Chairman

Age: 60 years
Na�onality: Italian
Date of Appointment: 06 March 2024
Length of Service in the HM Group: 34 years
Date of Last Re-elec�on: N/A
Membership in Board Commi�ee: Nil
Eligibility for Re�rement by Rota�on in the 35th AGM: No

Mr. Roberto completed his Bachelor of Engineering with a major in Electrical Engineering from the University of Cagliari, 
Italy, in 1990. Following this, he earned cer�ficates in Financial Management from Bocconi University, Milan, Italy, and 
Advanced Management from Harvard Business School, Boston, USA. Mr. Roberto's career with Italcemen� began in 1990, 
where he held various senior management posi�ons in Puerto Rico, the USA, Canada, Turkey, Thailand, Egypt, and Italy. 
From 2016 un�l the end of 2023, he served as the General Manager for Italy. As of 1 January 2024, Mr. Roberto has been a 
member of the Managing Board of Heidelberg Materials, overseeing the Asia region.

Heidelberg Materials AG
Heidelberg Materials Butra Sdn Bhd
Alliance Construc�on Materials Limited 
HeidelbergCement India Limited
Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd.
China Century Cement Limited
Jidong Heidelberg (Fufeng) Cement Company Limited
Jidong Heidelberg (Jingyang) Cement Company Limited
Easy Point Industrial Limited

HeidelbergCement Holding Hong Kong Limited
Squareal Cement Limited
Asia Cement Public Company Limited
Jalaprathan Cement Public Company Limited
Guangzhou Heidelberg Yuexiu Enterprise Management 
Consul�ng Company Ltd.
Gulbarga Cement Limited
Zuari Cement Limited

DIRECTORSHIP OF OTHER COMPANIES:
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Age: 64 years
Na�onality: Bangladeshi
Date of Appointment: 23 July 2019 (First Term)
Length of Service with HM Group: N/A
Date of Last Re-appointment: 23 July 2022 (Second Term)
Membership in Board Commi�ee: BAC
Eligibility for Re�rement by Rota�on in the 35th AGM: N/A

Mr. Khalek is a fellow member of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of 
Bangladesh. He completed post-gradua�on in Commerce from the 
University of Dhaka in 1985. He has a high academic career and 
commendable experience in the field of corporate policy formula�on and 
implementa�on, mentoring, business diversifica�on, financial management, 
tax planning and compliance, internal audit, corporate governance and 
secretarial func�ons. He served Berger Paints Bangladesh Limited (BPBL) 
under different capaci�es (22 years as CFO). On successful comple�on of all 
3 parts of Special Enrollment Examina�ons, he has been accredited as 
Enrolled Agent of IRS, USA from February 2021 and currently serving as 
Managing Partner and CEO of SME CFO Services.

He does not hold the office of directorship in any other company.

Abdul Khalek, FCA
Independent Director

Age: 53 years
Na�onality: Filipino
Date of Appointment: 21 July 2011
Length of Service in HM Group: 13 years
Date of Last Appointment: 22 August 2021
Membership in Board Commi�ee: Nil
Eligibility for re�rement by rota�on in the 35th AGM: No

Mr. Ugarte completed gradua�on in Business Administra�on in 1996 from 
the University of San Francisco, California, USA. He is a member of the 
Australian Ins�tute of Company Directors.

He joined as Managing Director of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited in 
August 2011. Under his leadership HC Bangladesh experienced remarkable 
growth and maximum stakeholders return.

He has long track record managing various businesses in different countries, 
also including CEMEX.

DIRECTORSHIP OF OTHER COMPANIES:
 Butra HeidelbergCement (BHC) Sdn Bhd

Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director
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Age: 65 years
Na�onality: Bangladeshi
Date of Appointment: 23 October 2023
Length of Service in HC Group: N/A
Date of Last Re-elec�on: N/A 
Membership in Board Commi�ee: BAC & NRC
Eligibility for Re�rement or Re-appointment in the 35th AGM: N/A

Mr. Majumder is an accomplished financial professional with an 
impressive background in finance and accoun�ng. He holds the �tle 
of Fellow Member at the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of 
Bangladesh. He is also an Associate Member of the Associa�on of 
Cost and Execu�ve Accountants (ACEA) in the UK. With exper�se in 
financial strategy, financial modeling, tax, VAT administra�on, 
governance, compliance, and performance improvement. He 
currently serves as the Chief Financial Officer at LG Bu�erfly Group.

Mr. Majumder has accumulated over 33 years of cross-industrial 
experience, having held prominent posi�ons at renowned 
organiza�ons such as Prime Bank Limited, Banglalion 
Communica�ons Limited, Appollo Hospital Dhaka, P & O Nedlloyd, 
and Padma Oil Company. He served on the Boards of Harper Power 
Plant (a subsidiary of Power Development Board), Eastern Lubricant 
Blenders Limited, and Bangladesh University of Engineering & 
Technology (BUET).

Notably, he does not hold any Directorship posi�ons in other 
companies now. His remarkable qualifica�ons, diverse experience, 
and substan�al contribu�ons to the finance and accoun�ng realm 
have cemented his esteemed status within the community.

Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA
Independent Director

Age: 47 years
Na�onality: Singaporean
Date of Appointment: 29 January 2014
Length of Service in the HM Group: 12 years
Date of Last Re-elec�on: 27 June 2022
Membership in Board Commi�ee: NRC
Eligibility for Re�rement by Rota�on in the 35th AGM: Yes

Mr. Fong completed gradua�on in Law from the Na�onal University 
of Singapore in 2001 and passed the Board of Legal Educa�on 
Post-graduate Prac�cal Law Course in 2001. He was admi�ed to the 
Singapore Bar as an advocate and solicitor in 2002. He has 
specialized knowledge and experience in capital markets, merger & 
acquisi�on deals, energy-related transac�ons, and outbound deals. 
He joined the Heidelberg Materials Group in 2012 and is currently 
working as the Legal Director for Asia.

DIRECTORSHIP OF OTHER COMPANIES:
 Butra HeidelbergCement Sdn Bhd, Brunei

Fong Wei Kurk
Director
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Age: 55 years
Na�onality: Malaysian
Date of Appointment: 29 January 2014
Length of Service in the HM Group: 20 years
Date of Last Re-elec�on: 27 June 2022
Membership in Board Commi�ee: BAC & NRC
Eligibility for Re�rement by Rota�on in the 35th AGM: Yes

Ms. Sim is a CPA from the Malaysian Associa�on of Cer�fied Public 
Accountants (MICPA) as well as a Chartered Accountant from the 
Malaysian Ins�tute of Accoun�ng (MIA). She is skilled at leading diverse 
teams of accoun�ng professionals to meet the Group requirements. She 
has 30 years of Accoun�ng & Finance related experience in Property and 
Construc�on, FMCG Manufacturing & Building Materials companies. Her 
core competency includes strong knowledge of group repor�ng, financial 
analysis, capital evalua�ons, ERP systems, customs, and taxa�on ma�ers 
as well as inter-company transac�ons and transfer pricing issues.

DIRECTORSHIP OF OTHER COMPANIES:
 HeidelbergCement India Limited
 Butra HeidelbergCement Sdn Bhd
 Asia Cement Public Company Limited
 Zuari Cement Limited
 Alliance Construc�on Materials Limited
 Heidelberg Materials Asia Pte. Ltd.
 Gulbarga Cement Limited

Sim Soek Peng
Director

Age: 61 years
Na�onality: Bangladeshi
Date of Appointment: 26 June 2006
Length of Service in the HM Group: 23 years
Date of Last Re-elec�on: 27 June 2022
Membership in Board Commi�ee: N/A
Eligibility for Re�rement by Rota�on in the 35th AGM: Yes

Mr. Chowdhury is a fellow member of the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). His area of competency includes 
analyzing an organiza�on’s cri�cal financial requirements, iden�fica�on 
of deficiencies and poten�al opportuni�es and improvement of 
shareholders’ offerings. Apart from leading the finance team as CFO, he 
is also looking a�er the IT func�on of the Company.

He does not hold the office of directorship in any other company.

Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA
Director & Chief Financial Officer
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Age: 58 years
Na�onality: Bangladeshi
Date of Appointment: 23 October 2019
Length of Service in the HM Group: N/A
Date of Last Re-elec�on: 13 June 2023
Membership in Board Commi�ee: N/A
Eligibility for Re�rement by Rota�on in the 35th AGM: No

Mr. Hossain completed gradua�on and post-gradua�on in Sta�s�cs from 
Jahangirnagar University. He has been serving as the Managing Director 
of Investment Corpora�on of Bangladesh since 21 August 2019, the core 
public sector investment bank of the country. He has more than 33 years 
of diversified experience in investment banking, specialized and 
commercial banking, islamic banking, asset management and ICT works. 
He started his career as a System Analyst/Senior Principal Officer of ICB in 
1998 and served in different posi�ons in the same organiza�on. Prior to 
his joining in ICB, he acted as the Managing Director of Karmasangsthan 
Bank. He also served as the Managing Director (Addi�onal Charge) and 
Deputy Managing Director of Bangladesh Krishi Bank. In addi�on to 
perform his professional du�es, Mr. Hossain is ac�vely involved in 
different philanthropic ac�vi�es of various na�onal, social, cultural, 
religious and volunteer organiza�ons.

DIRECTORSHIP OF OTHER COMPANIES:
 Bri�sh American Tobacco Bangladesh Co. Ltd. (BATBC)
 Unilever Consumer Care Limited (UNILEVERCL)
 Standard Bank Limited
 Na�onal Tea Company Limited (NTC)
 Apex Tannery Limited
 United Power Genera�on & Distribu�on Company Limited (UPGDCL)
 Apex Footwear Limited 
 Padma Bank Limited
 The ACME Laboratories Ltd.

Md. Abul Hossain
Director

Age: 60 years
Na�onality: Belgian
Date of Appointment: 23 July 2015
Length of Service in HM Group: 34 years
Date of Last Re-elec�on: 13 June 2023
Membership in Board Commi�ee: Nil
Eligibility for Re�rement by Rota�on in the 35th AGM: NO

Mr. Defalque completed Post Gradua�on in Mining Engineering from 
Catholic University of Louvain-la-Neuve, Belgium in 1982-1987. He has 
worked for about 34 years in the Cement industry in different capaci�es. 
He is a highly experienced execu�ve who demonstrates the ability to lead 
diverse teams of professionals to new levels of success in challenging 
environments. His core competency includes managing large investment 
projects, suppliers and contractors selec�on and commissioning and 
handing over of new facili�es or plants to opera�ons.

DIRECTORSHIP OF OTHER COMPANIES:
 PT Indocement Tunggal Prakarsa Tbk.
 Asia Cement Public Company Limited
 Zuari Cement Limited
 Gulbarga Cement Limited

Juan-Francisco Defalque
Director



Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

Ashraful Amin (Badal)
Director Purchasing & Logis�cs

Project Co-ordina�on

Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA
Chief Financial Officer

Terence Ong Kian Hock
Technical Director

Kazi Md. Mainuddin Sayem
Director Marke�ng and Sales

Mohammad Alamgir
Director Human Resources

Saikat Khan
Director Legal

Md. Emdadul Haque CMA FCA
Company Secretary & SS Manager

Management Commi�ee
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Dear Stakeholders of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh 
Limited.

I am pleased to present HeidelbergCement Bangladesh 
Limited's Annual Report for the financial year 2023, 
highligh�ng our remarkable achievements and resilience in 
the face of challenging condi�ons. Despite naviga�ng 
through a complex landscape marked by poli�cal ac�vi�es, 
infla�on, commodity price vola�lity, and supply chain 
disrup�ons, we successfully transi�oned from losses in 2022 
to profitability in 2023.

Our strategic focus on efficient cost management and 
product innova�on has yielded posi�ve results. We achieved 
our highest-ever revenue with a 7.1% increase in sales and a 
remarkable 92.4% increase in gross profit. Our EPS improved 
significantly to BDT 8.13 from BDT -4.13 in 2022, reflec�ng 
our commitment to delivering value to our shareholders. The 
cement industry in Bangladesh con�nues to show growth, 
driven by rapid urbaniza�on and infrastructure development. 
Despite challenges such as price hikes for building materials 
and economic vola�lity, we have maintained our posi�on as a 
price leader, demonstra�ng the strength of our brand and 
the trust of our customers.

Innova�on remains at the core of our strategy. The launch of 
our 'Mul�-Purpose Cement' (MPC), which has garnered 
a�en�on globally for its eco-friendly a�ributes and superior 
quality, is a testament to our commitment to sustainable 
prac�ces and excellence in product development. While our 
financial results for 2023 are encouraging, we recognize that 
the challenges are far from over. The global economic 
landscape remains uncertain, with ongoing challenges such 
as raw material price fluctua�ons, currency fluxes, and 
intense market compe��on. However, we are confident in 
our ability to navigate these challenges and emerge stronger.

Despite the challenges that are expected to persist and 
intensify in the upcoming financial year 2024, the financial 
results from the first few months of 2024 provide us with 
hope for successful business development. The Company has 
shown remarkable flexibility in adap�ng to changing 
circumstances, as evidenced by our ac�ons in the first 
quarter of 2024, including lowering expenses and adjus�ng 
sales prices. Despite the nega�ve market outlook for 
Bangladesh in 2024, our company is well-posi�oned to 
sustain con�nued growth. Looking ahead, we remain 
commi�ed to our core values of health and safety, 
sustainability, and customer-centric innova�on. We will 
con�nue to invest in our people, processes, and technologies 
to drive long-term growth and create value for our 
stakeholders.

As a subsidiary of Heidelberg Materials (HM) Group, HCBL 
receives unwavering guidance on adhering to the country's 
legisla�ve norms and regula�ons to protect the environment. 
HM Group priori�zes greener industrial solu�ons and 
employs the best available technologies to reduce associated 
CO2 emissions. We are commi�ed to maintaining our 
financial growth while simultaneously enhancing our 
sustainability efforts and embracing digi�za�on. We would 
like to emphasize our unwavering commitment to 
transparency and accountability. We understand the 
importance of maintaining trust with our stakeholders, and 
we are dedicated to upholding the highest standards of 
corporate governance. Our Board of Directors remains 
vigilant in its oversight role, ensuring that our opera�ons are 
conducted ethically and in compliance with all applicable 
laws and regula�ons. 

I extend my hear�elt gra�tude to my fellow board members 
for their invaluable leadership, direc�on, and contribu�on. I 
also wish to acknowledge the dedica�on and contribu�on of 
our management team, employees, bankers, and business 
partners to the Company. I am grateful for the support of 
government agencies, Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC, Chi�agong 
Stock Exchange PLC, and other statutory bodies in suppor�ng 
the Company's various ac�vi�es. Lastly, I express my deep 
apprecia�on to all our esteemed stakeholders for their 
con�nuous support and trust in us to lead the Company 
successfully into the future. We remain commi�ed to 
building a more sustainable business for our customers while 
increasing value for our shareholders.

Roberto Callieri
Chairman
Board of Directors
HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited
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Top Ten Shareholders of the Company as on 31 December 2023

Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.

Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH

Investment Corp. of Bangladesh

ICB Unit Fund

Khondoker Monir Uddin

Bangladesh Fund

Saif Khondoker

ICB AMCL Unit Fund

Rupali Bank Limited

Sonali Bank Limited

22,493,020

11,784,390

4,608,514

2,449,577

1,250,135

675,000

500,000

416,817

331,083

                330,000

39.81

20.86

8.16

4.34

2.21

1.19

.88

.74

.59

.58

Name of shareholders No. of shares held Percentage

Classifica�on of shareholders by holding

No. of shares held No. of
shareholders

31 December 2022

0 - 5,000

5,001 - 50,000

50,001 - 200,000

200,001 - 500,000

500,001 - 10,000,000

10,000,001 - 56,503,580

Total

Total holding Percentage
No. of

shareholders

31 December 2023

8,995

204

48

7

6

2

9,262

9917

226

38

8

6

2

10,197

3,285,622

3,521,897

3,236,485

2,668,890

9,513,276

34,277,410

56,503,580

5.82

6.23

5.73

4.72

16.84

60.66

100.00

2,928,881

3,247,663

4,068,504

2,463,176

9,517,946

34,277,410

56,503,580

5.18

5.75

7.20

4.36

16.85

60.66

100.00

Total holding Percentage

Shareholding Posi�on

The break-up of the total shareholding Year-2023

39.81%
Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.

39.33%
General Public, Ins�tu�ons & Others

20.86%
Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH

The break-up of the total shareholding

Shareholders                                            Year-2023

General Public, Ins�tu�ons & Others 39.33%
Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH 20.86%

Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V. 39.81%
(Formerly known as HeidelbergCement Netherlands Holding B.V.)
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1

For the year ended 31 December 2023
. INTRODUCTION  

 The Board of Directors of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited ("HCBL" or the "Company") is pleased to publish the Company's 
Annual Report 2023, which furnishes, inter alia, the independent auditors’ report and audited annual financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2023 as well as other useful informa�on of the Company. These will be laid before the Company’s 
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) scheduled for 8 May 2024. Further, in compliance with Sec�on 
184 of the Companies Act, 1994, and the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) issued by the Bangladesh Securi�es and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) on 3 June 2018, the Company has taken care to incorporate all requisite disclosures in this report.   
 
2. STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
 
In 2023, the Company successfully transi�oned from losses in 2022 to profitability, marking a significant milestone in its f inancial 
journey. Despite facing numerous challenges such as heightened poli�cal ac�vi�es due to the na�onal elec�on, higher infla�on, 
commodity price vola�lity, soaring energy costs, major macroeconomic imbalances, supply chain disrup�ons, and geopoli�cal 
conflicts, the Company managed to achieve its highest-ever revenue. HCBL's overall sales increased by 7.1% and gross profit by 
92.4% compared to last year, a�ributed to the proper management of direct costs. The current year's EPS was BDT 8.13, a significant 
improvement from BDT -4.13 in 2022. 
 
3. CEMENT INDUSTRY  
 
The cement market in Bangladesh has experienced significant growth over the past decade, with demand fueled by the country's 
rapid urbaniza�on and infrastructure development. The industry is dominated by a few major players, with local producers 
accoun�ng for the majority of cement produc�on. Bangladesh's cement industry is one of the world's fastest-growing, with per 
capita cement usage of around 230kg in 2023. Residen�al, engineering, and non-engineering consump�on are the key drivers of 
this industry. Increasing urbaniza�on coupled with large-scale infrastructure development projects implemented by the 
government has s�mulated the building materials sector and increased demand for cement with a compound annual growth rate 
(CAGR) of 8.2% in the last ten years.  
 
In 2023, the industry adjusted for the incremental cost with sales prices, resul�ng in margin growth, although there was a reduc�on 
in volume. Price hikes for other building materials, such as steel and bricks, were even higher. This, along with significant infla�on, 
deple�on of foreign currency reserves, and the devalua�on of the taka against the USD, contributed to weaker demand for cement 
in 2023. Addi�onally, the ongoing price war among manufacturers to gain market share has intensified. Economic vola�lity is 
presumed to persist through 2024. 
 
4. OPERATIONS 
 
4.1. Sales and Production  
In the year 2023, HCBL successfully manufactured and distributed a combined total of 2.185 million tons of cement through our 
three strategically posi�oned plants in Kanchpur, Chi�agong, and Mukterpur. This quan�ty represents a marginal 1.2% declin e 
compared to the aggregate sales volume achieved in 2022. Notably, the Company's overall sales volume experienced a decrease of 
28k tons in comparison to the preceding year. 
 
4.2. Price 
HCBL's clientele is well-informed about our unwavering commitment to product quality and relentless pursuit of innova�on, factors 
that have cul�vated a robust trust in our brand. The consistent performance of our cement has ins�lled a high level of conf idence 
among consumers, enabling us to command a premium price. Despite facing challenges and fierce compe��on in the market, the 
company has effec�vely sustained its posi�on as a price leader in our product category.  
 
4.3. Customer Service 
Merely comple�ng the transac�on of selling and delivering cement to customers' doorsteps is insufficient for fostering last ing 
customer rela�onships and ensuring sustained business growth. The key lies in priori�zing swi� and efficient responses to customer 
needs during the post-sales phase, as this not only adds substan�al value but also elevates the Company's reputa�on in the market. 
At HCBL, we are dedicated to understanding our customers' requirements. Our proficient, seasoned, and commi�ed sale s and 
technical service teams ac�vely engage with our valued customers, providing tailored solu�ons and insigh�ul consulta�ons 
wherever needed, further reinforcing our commitment to customer sa�sfac�on. 
 
4.4. Product Innovation 
HCBL proudly launched its revolu�onary 'Mul�-Purpose Cement' (MPC) last year, adhering rigorously to Bangladesh Standards for 
Cement by the Bangladesh Standard Tes�ng Ins�tu�on (BSTI). Pioneering MPC's commercial introduc�on in Bangladesh, HCBL is  
se�ng new industry standards. This innova�ve cement has garnered a�en�on globally, par�cularly in America, Europe, and As ia, 
for its eco-friendly a�ributes and commitment to reducing environmental impact. 
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MPC embodies cu�ng-edge technology and a unique blend of premium raw materials, showcasing excellence in cement 
innova�on. This advanced product ensures superior long-term strength for construc�on while championing environmental 
sustainability by reducing greenhouse gas emissions during produc�on, resul�ng in a significantly reduced carbon footprint. 
 
Beyond its eco-friendly creden�als, MPC stands out for an array of technical advantages. It not only enhances workability but also 
ensures higher long-term strength, se�ng a new standard for structural durability. Addi�onally, MPC exhibits increased resistance 
to chemical a�acks, further solidifying its status as a versa�le and resilient solu�on suitable for a wide spectrum of con struc�on 
projects. 
 
4.5. Marketing Activities 
In 2023, we strategically focused our marke�ng efforts on launching our innova�ve product, "Mul� -Purpose Cement," under the 
renowned brands "ScanCement" and "RubyCement." We used a mul�faceted approach to establish and promote this 
groundbreaking addition to our product por�olio. Addi�onally, we conducted various marke�ng ac�vi�es to maintain a strong and 
posi�ve presence in the minds of our customers. 
 

a) New Product Launch Excellence: We promoted Mul�-Purpose Cement with a comprehensive strategy, including engaging 
launch events, impac�ul press releases, full-page press adver�sements, informa�ve product leaflets, in-shop festoons, 
cap�va�ng 3D in-shop posters, and an ac�ve presence on social media. These efforts aimed to raise awareness and build 
trust in our new product. 

 
b) Outdoor Visibility Amplification: We ensured brand visibility with dis�nc�ve shop signs and a�en�on-grabbing mega signs 

to enhance brand recall. 
 

c) Demand Generation Initiatives: To boost demand and raise awareness, we conducted personalized, one-to-one 
communica�on ac�vi�es. We organized face-to-face mee�ngs with key influencers like masons, homeowners, and 
engineers, focusing on explaining the benefits and applica�ons of Mul�-Purpose Cement. These sessions aimed to provide 
comprehensive product knowledge to ensure understanding among stakeholders. 

 
d) Elevating Brand Image: We strategically boosted our brand image by showcasing it alongside na�onal landmarks like the 

Padma Bridge, Mayor Hanif Flyover, Cox’s Bazar Railway, Padma Rail Link Bridge, and Karnaphuli Tunnel in press ads and 
social media. This aimed to elevate our brand and connect with a broader audience. 
 

5. KEY INITIATIVES IN THE PROCUREMENT & LOGISTICS 
 
2023 was a highly successful year for procurement and logis�cs opera�ons, highlighted by the following achievements: 
 
5.1. Procurement saving 
We achieved significant savings in raw material sourcing compared to the previous year, marking the highest savings within the HM 
Group among APAC countries. 

 
5.2. Raw Material Supply & Pricing 
We maintained uninterrupted raw material inflow throughout the year, overcoming challenges with country L/Cs and foreign 
currency reserves. Our approach included regular tendering processes, and working closely with HM Group experts to op�mize raw 
material costs. 
 
5.3. Procurement Digitization 
The tendering process has been enhanced for transparency and digi�zed using Ariba sourcing & Ariba auc�on. Internal users can 
now directly order from the Ariba buying pla�orm, improving efficiency and saving �me.  

 
5.4. Fly Ash local sourcing 
In 2023, we sourced a significant amount of fly ash from local sources, par�cularly the Payra and Rampal power plants. U�li zing 
local fly ash contributes to environmental cleanliness, reduces our carbon footprint, and conserves the country's foreign currency 
reserves by decreasing the need for fly ash imports. 

 
5.5. Fixed Cost Reduction 
We reduced fixed costs by op�mizing our Bulk Carriers and fleet.  
 
6. KEY INITIATIVES IN THE MANUFACTURING PROCESS 

 
HCBL is recognized for its commitment to excellence in cement produc�on and environmental stewardship. The company employs 
state-of-the-art technology throughout its manufacturing process, ensuring the highest levels of safety, hygiene, and quality 
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compliance with na�onal and global standards. Noteworthy achievements include a focus on reducing carbon footprint through 
innova�ve produc�on techniques, power-saving ini�a�ves, and the incorpora�on of renewable energy sources such as solar power. 
 
6.1. Implementation of online date printing machine  
To ensure that cement bags are delivered to dealers with their specific iden�ty and manufacturing month, an online date prin�ng 
machine has been installed.  

 
6.2. Remote Plant Operations  
We have implemented a remote opera�on facility for our plants, enabling us to operate four plants across two countries from a 
single central loca�on. 

 
6.3. Dust collector installation at clinker transport conveyor belt 
To maintain a clean environment and minimize dust emissions in the raw material handling areas of the clinker transport belt, we 
have installed a dust collector with a capacity of 18,000m3/hr. The bag filter efficiently collects dust from the dump truck dropping 
point, u�lizing a high-performance Auto Pulsing System to control emissions during raw material transporta�on. 

 
6.4. Removal of Conveyor Belt for boosting efficiency 
Sustainability is crucial in power systems to reduce resource reliance and environmental impact. Sustainable maintenance prac�ces 
ensure efficient resource use, prolong equipment lifespan and minimize waste. Addressing dust emissions is vital for human health 
and ecosystem well-being. We merged two conveyor belts, reducing power consump�on, maintenance, and dust emissions. 

 
6.5. Installation of Safety Nets Beneath Conveyor Belts to Prevent Roller Falls from Height 
At the forefront of our business is a commitment to safety. To enhance safety and protect our employees, we developed and 
implemented an innova�ve safety net system. This system reliably intercepts and safeguards against roller falls, preven�ng 
accidents and maintaining a secure work environment. 

 
6.6. Initiatives are taken to reduce the water consumption 
Water is a precious resource, and at HCBL, we are dedicated to minimizing our use of surface and groundwater. To reduce our 
consump�on of underground water, all plants have installed centralized water tanks for u�lity water and rainwater harves�ng 
systems. These waters are u�lized for plant opera�ons. Given Bangladesh's substan�al annual rainfall, there is a consistent and 
ample supply of rainwater. 

 
6.7. Safety Protection of Screw Conveyor 
Screw conveyors are extensively used rota�ng machines in Cement Plants. To improve safety, we have installed fencing to restrict 
access to unauthorized personnel and added pull-cord switches for emergency stoppage. 

 
6.8. Waste Management 
Under the theme 'Our Environment, Our Responsibility,' we have focused on waste management planning. Our plan outlines waste 
types and quan��es, safe storage and disposal procedures, bin types and sizes, collec�on frequencies, and responsibili�es . Our 
goal is safe and efficient commercial waste management in an environmentally friendly manner. 

 
7. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
 
Heidelberg Materials (HM) Group has ini�ated the migra�on of its data center from the Singapore HUB to Microso� Virtual Az ure 
Cloud. This move aims to enhance business support efficiency and security while enabling flexible work arrangements for 
employees, allowing them to work from any loca�on and device connected to the Internet. 
 
During the review period, the Company successfully completed the following projects: 
 

a) Implemented Mul�-Factor Authen�ca�on (MFA) for accessing the Organiza�on's network and data, enhancing data security. 
b) Upgraded Local Area Network (LAN) and established an op�cal fiber link connec�on at the Mukterpur plant, ensuring smooth 

business opera�ons. 
c) Installed Sta�c Transfer Switch (STS) at the Mukterpur plant for IT equipment, ensuring automa�c redundant power supply. 
d) Deployed IT infrastructure and provided support for the Cement Expert System, enabling process automa�on at the 

Kanchpur and Mukterpur plants. 
e) Deployed VAT automa�on for all plant loca�ons using the SAP system. 

 
8. DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION AS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
In addi�on to preparing and presen�ng the financial statements, the Directors inform you that: 
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Particulars  BDT’000 
2023 2022 

Net Revenue  17,955,715 16,766,939 
Gross Profit  2,068,374 1,075,032 
Opera�ng Profit 886,830 -21,114 
Net Finance Expenses  -58,814 -59,082 
Profit Before Tax  786,615 -80,195 
Income Tax Expenses  -327,205 -153,245 
Profit A�er Tax  459,410 -233,441 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 8.13 -4.13 
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i) Un-appropriated Profit of HCBL in 2023  
 
Financial Results for the Year 2023:                           (BDT ’000)  
Un-appropriated profit from previous period           2,663,706 
Net Profit for the year a�er Tax                459,410 
Payment of dividend                               - 56,504 
Total Funds available for appropriation                           3,066,612 
 
Directors Recommended Dividend: 
Dividend @ 25%                                              -141,259 
Un-appropriated profit carried forward to next year                            2,925,353 
 
ii) A summary of the Company’s performance: 
 

Particulars 2023 2022 +/- in % 
Cement Produc�on  2,179,428 MT 2,206,702 MT 1.2% 
Cement Sales  2,185,153 MT 2,212,542 MT 1.2% 

 
 While there was li�le difference in sales volume between 2023 and 2022, the Net Sales Price per ton increased by BDT 

639 per ton because of the higher cost of goods sold. Total net revenue increased as a result by 7%. 
 

 The Year-to-Date (YTD) Cost of Goods Sold per ton for December 2023 increased by BDT 178 compared to the previous 
year. This increase was driven by the devalua�on of the Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) against the USD, resul�ng in higher costs 
for raw materials.  

 
 Net financial expenses remained steady at BDT 58.8 million in 2023 and BDT 59.0 million in 2022, primarily due to the 

Usance Payable at Sight (UPAS) Loan, reflec�ng the ongoing challenges with LC opening in Bangladesh. 
 
iii) Brief Summary of Financial Position 

 

Par�culars 
2023 2022  

Growth 
Rate (BDT million) Weight in 

Total Assets 
(BDT million) Weight in 

Total Assets 
Non-Current Assets 5,595 44% 5,878 67% -4.47% 
Current Assets 7,027 56% 2,902 33% 141.45% 
Total Assets 12,622 100% 8,780 100% 43.76% 

 
Property, Plant, and Equipment 
During the year, there was an addi�on of BDT 213 million in fixed assets to ensure the opera�ng capability of the Company. The 
addi�on includes BDT 16 million in Land & Building, BDT 163 million in Plant and Machinery, BDT 22 million in Furniture and 
Equipment, and BDT 12 million for Transport and Vehicles. 
 
Capital work-in-progress 
Capital work-in-progress balance of BDT 202 million includes BDT 66 million for payment of Land & Building and BDT 136 million 
for Plant and Machinery. 
 
Trade & Other Receivables 
Trade and other receivables decreased by BDT 52.4 million (449.3m vs 501.7m) due to improved collec�on efforts resul�ng in faster 
conversion of receivables into cash.  
 
Cash and Cash equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents consist of BDT 0.48 million in hand, BDT 278.69 million in bank accounts, and fixed deposits totaling BDT 
4,016.96 million. The substan�al increase in fixed deposits is a�ributed to incremental borrowings of BDT 3,992.08 million, primarily 
to meet deferred LC payment obliga�ons. 

 
The "Compara�ve Financial Results" sec�on on page number 11 has summarized financial results for the previous five years, which 
demonstrates the Company's business performance throughout �me. 
 
10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
All the transac�ons entered into between the Company and its related par�es during the financial year ended 31 December 2023 
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. In note no. 43 of the financial statements, a brief descrip�on 
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of related party transac�ons is given including the names of the respec�ve related par�es, the nature of the rela�onship with them, 
the nature of those transac�ons, and the value in the amount of such transac�ons. 
 
11. RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 
HCBL has a well-defined internal control and risk management system to ensure that transac�ons are properly authorized, 
recorded, and reported. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effec�vely implemented and monitored.  
The internal control system is supplemented by well-documented policies, guidelines, procedures, and reviews carried out by the 
Company’s internal audit func�on, which submits reports to the Management and the Audit Commi�ee of the Board. It covers the 
topics of measuring, assessing, and limi�ng risks. The points of focus of the risk management system are: 
 
 Besides pursuing efficient risk management as per group guidelines, HCBL is firmly commi�ed to observing the Code of 

Conduct and compliance standards; 
 Risk management coordina�on in Group Insurance;  
 Corporate risk management by managers at the opera�onal level; 
 Direct informa�on, repor�ng, and open communica�on of quan�fied risks between the Company’s Management Commi�ee 

and the Group Managing Board; 
 Standard and regular repor�ng to the Group. 

 
12. PROTECTION OF MINORITY INTEREST 
 
The Board of Directors helps to play an ac�ve role in protec�ng the interests of the minority shareholders, especially in view of the 
majority shareholder exercising control over the Company. In the event of minority interests being adversely affected, the Board 
shall take immediate correc�ve ac�ons a�er becoming aware of such a fact. The minority shareholders have been protected from 
abusive ac�ons by, or in the interest of, the controlling shareholders ac�ng either directly or indirectly and have effec�ve means of 
redress. 
 
13. GOING CONCERN  

 
The Company has adequate resources to con�nue its opera�ons for the foreseeable future and therefore the financial statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Whilst the ongoing crisis caused by the war between Russia & Ukraine and changes 
in the exchange rate has affected businesses worldwide, the Management has assessed that there are at this point no material 
uncertain�es related to events or condi�ons which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going 
concern.  
 
14. DIVIDEND 

 
The dividend distribu�on policy of the Company (ANNEXURE-H) allows it to recommend a dividend that is commensurate with its 
performance and investment requirements as well as meet shareholders’ expecta�ons. The Board of Directors recommends a cash 
dividend of BDT 2.50/- (BDT Two Taka & Fi�y Paisa only) per share for the year ended 31 December 2023.  
 
15. CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER 

 
The Company contributes a substan�al amount to the Na�onal Exchequer by way of du�es and taxes. HeidelbergCement 
Bangladesh Limited contributed BDT 3,687 million to the Na�onal Exchequer in 2023. 
 
16. AUDITORS  

 
M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants having office at BDBL Bhaban (Level-13), 12 Kawran Bazar Commercial 
Area, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh, were appointed at the 34th Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) by the members of the Company. In the 
year under review, they have performed their audit work sa�sfactorily. 
 
Based on their eligibility and the recommenda�on of the Board of Directors, it is proposed to re-appoint M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury 
& Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditor at the 35th AGM of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2024. 
The proposed fee for their services is BDT 950,000.00 (BDT Nine Lac Fi�y Thousand) only, and they will hold office un�l the  
conclusion of the forthcoming 36th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company. 
 
17. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE AUDITORS 
 
The current Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors of the Company, M/s. Hoque Bha�acharjee Das & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, of Jebun Index Trade Centre (8th Floor), 191 Shaheed Syed Nazrul Islam Sarani, 04 Bijoy Nagar, Dhaka-1000, will re�re 
at the 35th Annual General Mee�ng. Being eligible, they express their willingness and consent to be reappointed. As per the 
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Corporate Governance Code, the appointment of Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors is also subject to the approval of the 
members in the 35th AGM. The Board recommends their appointment as Corporate Governance Compliance Auditor for the year 
ending 31 December 2024 at a fee of BDT 35,000 (BDT Thirty-Five Thousand) only and to hold office un�l the conclusion of the next 
i.e. 36th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company. 
 
18. CREDIT RATING: 
 

 

 
19. DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION 

 
In accordance with Ar�cle 98(a) of the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, one-third (1/3) of the Directors who have been 
longest in the office are supposed to re�re from the office of Directors by rota�on at the ordinary general mee�ng every y ear. This 
year Ms. Sim Soek Peng, Mr. Fong Wei Kurk, and Mr. Jashim Uddin Chowdhury FCA are due for re�rement at the upcoming 
AGM. Per Ar�cle 98(c) of the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, the re�ring directors are eligible for re-elec�on. The brief 
resumes of the re�ring directors are set out in the sec�on on the Board of Directors profile on page 25. 
 
20. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
Mr. Abdul Khalek FCA and Mr. Md. Shahjahan Majumder FCA are ac�ng as Independent Directors of the Company. Md. Shahjahan 
Majumder FCA was appointed as an Independent Director by the Board in its mee�ng held on 23 October 2023 upon the 
recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee and his appointment is subject to the approval of the members 
at the ensuing AGM. There is a brief resume of his in this Annual Report under the Board of Directors profile. 
 
21. BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE 

 
In the sec�on on "Statement on Corporate Governance," the number of Board mee�ngs and a�endance at those mee�ngs for 
2023 are reported. 
 
22. REMUNERATION PAID TO THE DIRECTORS 

 
A total of BDT 402,000 was paid by the Company as Board mee�ng a�endance fees during the year. The remunera�on of Directors 
has been men�oned in note no. 42.2 of the Financial Statements. 
 
23. PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

 
As per condi�on No. 1(5)(xxiii) of the Code, the pa�ern of shareholding (along with details of names) of parent/subsidiary/associate 
companies and other related par�es, Directors, Chief Execu�ve Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal 
Audit & Compliance and their respec�ve spouses and minor children, as well as Execu�ves and Shareholders holding 10% or more 
vo�ng interest in the Company as at 31 December 2023 has been furnished herewith as ANNEXURE-D. 
 
24. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis regarding the Company's financial statements and opera�ng results for the year ended 31 
December 2023 have been provided herewith under ANNEXURE-G following condi�on No. 1(5)(xxv) of the Code. 
 
25. SUMMARY OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND 
 
To remain compliant with the BSEC’s (Capital Market Stabiliza�on Fund) Rules, 2022 dated 1 June 2022, the Company's unclaimed 
cash dividends from the years 2019 and before were transferred to the Capital Market Stabiliza�on Fund (CMSF), Account No. SND 
A/C 0010311521301 maintained with Community Bank Bangladesh Ltd., Gulshan Corporate Branch, Dhaka. Unclaimed stock 
dividends (bonus shares) and right shares were also transferred to CMSF's BO Account, which has the BOID number 
1201530074571230. 
 
For the years 2020 to 2022, dividend amounts were transferred to a dedicated dividend bank account, resul�ng in no unclaimed 
dividends remaining in our company's account. However, upon scru�nizing the last dividend bank account, we iden�fied the 
following remaining amounts in the dividend accounts: 
 

The Company achieved an AA2 (Lr) ra�ng in the long term and an ST-2 ra�ng in the short term for maintaining a strong and stable 
outlook for the year 2023 from the Credit Ra�ng Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB). This ra�ng reflects the Company's strong 
financial posi�on and its ability to meet its financial obliga�ons effec�vely, providing investors and stakeholders with 
confidence in its opera�ons and future prospects.    
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YYeeaarr  RRaattee  ooff  ddiivviiddeenndd  UUnnppaaiidd//uunnccllaaiimmeedd  ddiivviiddeenndd  
2020 20% 2,150  
2021 26% 1,745  
2022 10% 715  

 
 
26. HUMAN RESOURCES & EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 
 
The Human Resources Func�on of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (HCBL), supported by ExCom members and all 
employees, played a pivotal role in fostering a posi�ve work environment, a�rac�ng top talent, developing employee skills,  and 
ensuring compliance. Aligned with the company's strategic objec�ves, our efforts focused on congenial industrial rela�ons, talent 
management, employee engagement, compliance, and organiza�onal culture development. 
 
HCBL embarked on a transforma�ve journey to cul�vate a culture aligned with its strategic vision, emphasizing a posi�ve and 
forward-thinking mindset. Ini�a�ves included ins�tu�ng a resilient and adap�ve mindset across all organiza�onal levels through 
targeted communica�on, leadership engagement, and comprehensive training programs, including specialized sessions on Winning 
Mindset u�lizing Neuro-linguis�c programming (NLP) tools and techniques. 
 
Key posi�ons across departments were successfully filled, and innova�ve recruitment strategies a�racted top talent. A reva mped 
onboarding process and innova�ve prac�ces fostered seamless integra�on and contributed to a welcoming atmosphere. Employee 
engagement ini�a�ves, including events like Pitha Utshob & Compe��on, monthly birthday celebra�ons, and Long Service Awards, 
celebrated the unique contribu�ons of the diverse team. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Various training and development programs improved technical and so� skills. A project was ini�ated to make the sales team agile, 
responsive, and customer-centric, achieving digitaliza�on of sales processes and development of the team in line with strategic 
requirements. Compliance with labor laws and company policies was ensured through regular reviews and updates. 
 
Opera�onal excellence was pursued through the successful implementa�on of Workday So�ware, enhancing efficiency and 
streamlining learning and development ini�a�ves. These efforts empower the team to navigate challenges with resilience and 
innova�on, marking a transforma�ve step towards a more integrated and efficient learning experience. 
 
Commitment con�nues to enhance employee and talent development programs, strengthen diversity and inclusion ini�a�ves, 
invest in technology and automa�on, and priori�ze employee well-being and mental health through comprehensive wellness 
ini�a�ves. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26.1. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
We consider corporate social responsibility (CSR) an integral part of our business strategy, guided by our commitment to ethical 
prac�ces, environmental sustainability, community engagement, and employee well-being. Our CSR ini�a�ves aim to contribute to 
the sustainable development of communi�es while minimizing our environmental impact. HCBL focuses on the infrastructure, 
environment, and educa�on sectors, along with other short- and long-term CSR ac�vi�es. To improve the world, we collaborated 
with Habitat for Humanity Interna�onal and Domino Interna�onal, subsidizing building materials. 
 

(BDT In Thousand)
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HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Ltd. recently partnered with ASHAR-ALO, a school for special children run by the Bangladesh Navy, 
providing voca�onal training and entrepreneurial skills to approximately 150 students facing physical, intellectual, and mental 
challenges. We proudly supported the construc�on of a canteen for this noble cause. In terms of environmental ini�a�ves, HCBL 
par�cipated in tree-plan�ng ac�vi�es in the coastal areas of the Bay of Bengal. 
 
In conclusion, our efforts aim to enhance community engagement by suppor�ng local communi�es through various ini�a�ves, 
including educa�on programs and infrastructure development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26.2. Occupational Health & Safety 
HCBL's mission is to achieve zero Fatali�es and zero Lost-Time Injuries (LTI) by 2030, with a commitment to safety star�ng from day 
one of every year. This goal guides us to build a strong safety culture across our organiza�on. We priori�ze occupa�onal health and 
safety, with a robust safety system and a culture where safe behavior is second nature. Since 2013, we have been monitoring our 
progress through internal, external, and group audits. 

 
We report every incident, including near misses, to our global accident repor�ng system, AID, to understand the causes and prevent 
future accidents. In 2023, we delivered over 4000 manhours of safety training and conducted extensive mee�ngs across all levels 
of the organiza�on to reinforce safety prac�ces. Line managers have played a crucial role in promo�ng an interdependent safety 
culture through on-site safety conversa�ons and behavior monitoring. 

 
We have expanded our safety focus to include motorbike and driving safety, engaging employees' families through safety weeks 
and compe��ons. Our emergency response plan is rigorously implemented and prac�ced to ensure preparedness. These efforts 
have resulted in significant milestones in 2023: no fatali�es, no lost-�me injuries, and no serious accidents, demonstra�ng our 
commitment to crea�ng a safe workplace for everyone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
27. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

 
The Board believes firmly in good governance and ac�vely promotes and supports best prac�ces in corporate governance. The 
Company recognizes that the long-term success of business opera�ons depends on the effec�ve implementa�on of sound 
Corporate Governance prac�ces by, for instance, the effec�ve segrega�on of du�es and responsibili�es to ensure transparency 
and accountability. HCBL fulfills all the regulatory compliance requirements issued by the BSEC. We are pleased to confirm that the 
Company has complied with all the necessary guidelines under the Corporate Governance Code issued under the BSEC No�fica�on 
dated 03 June 2018. The Compliance report along with the necessary remarks/disclosure is appended in the Directors’ Report of 
the Company for the year 2023 at Annexures A to H. The Cer�ficate of Compliance required under the said Guidelines, as provided 
by Hoque Bha�acharjee Das & Co., Chartered Accountants, is annexed to this report in ANNEXURE-B.  
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Managing Director
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On behalf of the Board of Directors
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HCBL in Capital Market
HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited is a listed company on both stock 
exchanges, i.e. Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC (DSE) as well as Chi�agong Stock 
Exchange (CSE) PLC as “A” category share listed in the capital market. The 
Company’s capacity, sustainability, profitability and current business growth 
coupled with its strategic plans demonstrate a cler strategic advantage that will 
enable the Company to secure market share and maximize shareholders’ wealth.
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Par�culars

[As per condi�on No. 1(5) (xxvi)]

HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited
Declara�on by Managing Director and CFO

Date: 06 March 2024

The Board of Directors
HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited 
Symphony (6th & 7th Floor)
Plot# SE(F) 9, Road#142
Gulshan Avenue (South)
Dhaka-1212.

Subject: Declara�on on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 December 2023.

Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to condi�on no. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Ordinance No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 
03 June 2018 under sec�on 2CC of the Securi�es and Exchange,1969, we do hereby declare that:

The Financial Statements of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited for the year ended on 31 December 2023 have 
been prepared in compliance with Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards (IAS) or Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng 
Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed; 

The es�mates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in 
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view; 

The form and substance of transac�ons and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly present 
ed in its financial statements; 

To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and 
maintenance of accoun�ng records; 

Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies 
and procedures of the Company were consistently followed;  and

The management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng in preparing the financial statements is appropri ate 
and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also cer�fy that: -
We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31 December 2023 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

these statements collec�vely present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
exis�ng accoun�ng standards and applicable laws.

There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the Company during the year which 
is fraudulent, illegal, or in viola�on of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

         

Jose Marcelino Ugarte                                                  Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA
Managing Director                                      Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(i)

(a)

(b)

(ii)

ANNEXURE-A
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ANNEXURE-B

Report to the Shareholders of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited
On compliance of the Corporate Governance Code

For the year ended on 31 December 2023

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Heidelberg Cement Bangladesh 
Limited for the year ended on December 31, 2023. This Code relates to the No�fica�on No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006 
158/207/Admin/80, dated June 3, 2018 and No�fica�on No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2009- 193/66/PRD/148 dated 16 
October 2023 of the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examina�on was 
limited to the procedures and implementa�on there of as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to 
the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scru�ny and verifica�on and an independent audit on compliance of the condi�ons of the Corporate 
Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSSs) as adopted by 
Ins�tute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any 
condi�on of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons, which we have required, and a�er due scru�ny 
and verifica�on thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

1. The Company has complied with the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance Code as s�pulated in 
the above-men�oned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission.

2. The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards 
(BSSs) as adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this 
Code;

3. Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 
1994, the securi�es laws and other relevant laws;

4. The standard of governance in the Company is sa�sfactory.

[As per condi�on No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Dated, Dhaka
March 04, 2024

Cha�ogram Office:
Meera Bhaban (3rd Floor), 1670, Sk Mujib Road (In front of BADC Bhaban)
Goshaildanga, Agrabad C/A, Cho�agram-4100.

E-mails: info@hbdco.org, Website : www.hbdco.org

Dhaka Office:
Jebun Index Trade Centre (8th Floor), 191 Shaheed Syed Nazrul Islam 
Sarani, 04 Bijoy Nagar, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh. M: 01710827485, 
01713366656, Tel. +88-02-9355401   

Hoque Bha�achargee Das & Co.
Charterd Accountants
Signed By
Avijit Bha�acharjee, FCA
Partner
Enrollment No. 824
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ANNEXURE-C
As per condi�on No. 1(5)(xxvii)
Status of compliance with the condi�ons imposed by the Commission's No�fica�on No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 
June 2018 and No�fica�on No.  BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/66/PRD/148 dated 16 October 2023 issued under sec�on 2CC of the Securi�es 
and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 (XVII of 1969):

(Report under Condi�on No. 9)

Board of Directors

Independent Directors

Size of the Board of Directors: shall  not less than 
5 and not more than 20

At least 2(two) directors or one-fi�h (1/5) of the 
total number of directors, whichever is higher

Not an execu�ve of the Company in immediately 
preceding 2 (two) financial years 

Not a member or TREC holder/director/officer of 
any stock exchange

Not an independent director in more than 5 
(five) listed companies 

Not been convicted for a criminal offence 
involving moral turpitude 
Shall be appointed by the Board, subject to  prior 
consent of the Commission, a�er due 
considera�on of  recommenda�on of the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) 
and approved by the shareholders in the AGM 

The appointment of Mr. Md. Shahjahan 
Majumder , FCA, is yet to be approved 
by the members in the ensuing 35th 
AGM of HCBL.

Not a shareholder, director excep�ng 
independent director or officer of any member 
or TREC holder of any stock exchange or an 
intermediary of the capital market

Not a partner or an execu�ve or was not a 
partner or an execu�ve during the preceding 3 
(three) years of any concerned statutory audit 
firm or any firm that is already engaged with the 
Company 

who has not been reported as a defaulter in the 
latest Credit Informa�on Bureau (CIB) report of 
Bangladesh Bank for non-payment of any loan or 
advance or obliga�on to a bank or a financial 
ins�tu�on;

Does not  hold any share or holds less than 1% 
shares of the total paid-up shares of the 
Company 

Does not have any other rela�onship, whether 
pecuniary or otherwise, with the company or its 
subsidiary/associated Companies

Not a sponsor/not connected with any sponsor 
or director or nominated director or shareholder 
of the Company or any of its associates, sister 
concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding 
en��es who holds 1% or more shares of the total 
paid-up shares of the Company on the basis of 
family rela�onship and his or her family 
members are also not allowed to hold more than 
1% shares of the total paid-up shares of the 
Company 

There are two Independent Directors 
(IDs) in the Board, namely 1. Mr. Abdul 
Khalek, FCA and 2. Mr. Md. Shahjahan 
Majumder, FCA.

HCBL has total 9 Directors in its Board.

Both IDs are compliant with this as per  
their respec�ve declara�on filed with 
HCBL.

1

Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.
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The post cannot remain vacant for more than 90 
(ninety) days 

Qualifica�on of Independent Director

Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Execu�ve Officer (CEO) of the 
company

The tenure of office shall be for a period of 3 (three) 
years, which may be extended for 1 (one) tenure 
only. A former independent director may be 
reappointed for another tenure a�er a �me gap of 
3 years from his/her comple�on of consecu�ve 
two tenures. The independent directors shall not 
be subject to re�rement by rota�on 

shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity 
and able to ensure compliance with relevant laws 
as well as able to make meaningful contribu�on to 
the business 

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or 
director of an unlisted company having minimum 
paid-up capital of Tk.100.00 million or any  listed 
company or a member of any na�onal or interna-
�onal chamber  of commerce or registered 
business associa�on

Corporate leader usually top level execu�ve not 
lower than CEO/MD/AMD/DMD/COO/CFO/Head 
of Finance or Accounts/CS/HIAC/Head of Adminis-
tra�on and Human Resources or any other person 
who holds equivalent posi�on and same level or 
ranked or salaried officials of a unlisted company 
having paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a 
listed company or  

Former or exis�ng official of government or 
statutory or autonomous or regulatory body in the 
posi�on not below 5th Grade of the na�onal  pay 
scale, who has at least educa�onal background of 
bachelor degree  in economics or commerce or 
business or Law

University Teacher having educa�onal background 
in Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or 
Law  or

Minimum 10 years of experience

Professional including prac�cing advocate at least 
in the High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme 
Court/CA/CMA/CFA/CCA/CS/equ iva lent 
qualifica�on 

Relaxa�on in special cases as to qualifica�ons of 
independent director

The posi�on of the both shall be filled by different 
individuals

MD shall not hold same posi�on in any other listed 
company

Chairperson shall be a non-execu�ve director 

No such vacancy con�nued for more 
than 90 days during the year.

Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA is 
con�nuing his 1st term of office as 
Independent Director while Mr. Abdul 
Khalek, FCA is con�nuing his 2nd term.

Both Independent Directors are 
undoubtedly knowledgeable and 
posses proven skills and experience to 
make meaningful contribu�on to the 
business of HCBL.

Mr. Abdul Khalek, FCA was Director and 
CFO of Berger Paints Bangladesh Limited.
Mr. Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA has 
been serving in various capaci�es such as 
Finance Director, Chief Opera�ng Officer 
(COO), and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
in different renowned companies. 

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Complied.

IDs have more than 10 years of 
experience.

In 2023, Mr. Kevin Gluskie held the 
posi�on of Chairman, while Mr. Jose 
Marcelino Ugarte served as Managing 
Director.

The Managing Director does not hold 
the same posi�on in any other listed 
company.

IDs are fellow member of the Ins�tute 
of Chartered Accountants of 
Bangladesh (ICAB). 

Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 68

Clear defined roles & responsibili�es for both of 
them

Directors’ Report to Shareholders

In the absence of regular chairperson, the other 
members shall elect a non-execu�ve director to 
chair that par�cular mee�ng 

An industry outlook and possible future 
developments in the industry
The segment-wise or product-wise performance

Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit 
Margin and Net Profit Margin 

Discussion on con�nuity of any extraordinary 
ac�vi�es and their implica�ons (gain or loss) 

A detailed discussion on related party 
transac�ons 

A statement of u�liza�on of proceeds raised 
through public issues, rights issues and/or any 
other instruments 
An explana�on if the financial results deteriorate 
a�er the company goes for IPO, RPO, Rights 
Offer, Direct Lis�ng, etc. 

An explana�on on any significant variance that 
occurs between Quarterly Financial performances 
and Annual Financial Statements 
Remunera�on paid to the directors including 
independent directors 

Adop�on of appropriate & consistent accoun�ng 
policies and es�mates 
Follow of IAS, IFRS  in prepara�on of the financial 
statements and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed 
A statement that the system of internal control is 
sound in design and has been effec�vely 
implemented and monitored 
A statement that minority shareholders have been 
protected from abusive ac�ons by, or in the interest 
of, controlling shareholders ac�ng either directly or 
indirectly and have effec�ve means of redress 

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon 
the issuer company’s ability to con�nue as a going 
concern, if the issuer company is not considered to 
be a going concern, the fact along with reasons 
there of shall be disclosed 

 An explana�on that significant devia�ons from the 
last year’s opera�ng results of the issuer company 
shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall 
be explained 

A statement where key opera�ng and financial data 
of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be 
summarized 

An explana�on on the reasons if the issuer 
company has not declared dividend (cash or stock) 
for the year 

Fairness of financial statements
Maintenance of proper books of accounts

HCBL has defined roles & responsibili�es 
for both. 

Available in the Directors' Report.

A statement of all related party 
transac�ons are disclosed in the Audited 
Financial Statements as well.

Do
Do

Do

Do
Do

Do

Do

Do

Available in "Compara�ve Financial 
Highlights" sec�on.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Available in the Directors' Report.

Available in the Directors' Report.

On 23 February 2023, a mee�ng was 
convened during which Mr. Fong Wei 
Kurk, a non-execu�ve director, was 
appointed as the chairperson.

Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.
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Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus 
share or stock dividend has been or shall be 
declared as interim dividend 
The total number of Board mee�ngs held during 
the year and a�endance by each director 

shares held by Parent or Subsidiary or Associated 
Companies and other related par�es (name-wise 
details) 
Report on shares held by Directors, Chief 
Execu�ve Officer, Company Secretary, Chief 
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance and their spouses and minor 
children (name-wise details) 

Execu�ves  and

a brief resume of the director  
nature of his or her exper�se in specific func�on-
al areas  and
names of companies in which the person also 
holds the directorship and the membership of 
commi�ees of the Board 

accoun�ng policies and es�ma�on for 
prepara�on of financial statements 

compare such financial performance or results 
and financial posi�on as well as cash flows with 
the peer industry scenario 

risks and concerns issues related to the financial 
statements, explaining such risk and concerns 
mi�ga�on plan of the company  and

future plan or projec�on or forecast for 
company’s opera�on, performance and financial 
posi�on, with jus�fica�on thereof, i.e., actual 
posi�on shall be explained to the shareholders in 
the next AGM  

Declara�on or cer�fica�on by the CEO and the 
CFO to the Board as required under condi�on 
No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A  

briefly explain the financial and economic 
scenario of the country and the globe 

changes in accoun�ng policies and es�ma�on, if 
any, clearly describing the effect on financial 
performance or results and financial posi�on as 
well as cash flows in absolute figure for such 
changes 

compara�ve analysis (including effects of 
infla�on) of financial performance or results and 
financial posi�on as well as cash flows for current 
financial year with immediate preceding five 
years explaining reasons thereof 

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more 
vo�ng interest in the company (name-wise details) 

A report on the pa�ern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise 
details where stated below) held by:-   

In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the following informa�on to the 
shareholders:- 

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presen�ng detailed analysis of the company’s 
posi�on and opera�ons along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements, among others, 
focusing on:

HCBL has defined roles & responsibili�es 
for both. 

Available in "Statement of Corporate 
Governance" sec�on.

See annexure-D

See "Board of Directors" sec�on

See Annexure-G

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

See "Annexure-A"

Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.
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The report as well as cer�ficate regarding 
compliance of condi�ons of this Code as 
required under condi�on No. 9 shall be disclosed 
as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C;

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct for 
the Chairman, other Board members and Chief 
Execu�ve Officer

Same provisions shall be applicable for composi-
�on of the Board of the holding and the Board of 
the subsidiary 
At least one independent director on the Board 
of the holding Company shall be a director on 
the Board of  the subsidiary Company

The minutes of the Board mee�ng of the subsidiary 
company shall be placed for review at the following 
Board mee�ng of the holding company

The minutes of the respec�ve Board mee�ng of 
the holding company shall state that they have 
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also 

The Audit Commi�ee of the holding company 
shall also review the financial statements, in 
par�cular the investments made by the 
subsidiary company.

Appointment of MD or CEO, CFO, HIAC and CS

Different individuals are in the posi�on of MD or 
CEO, CFO, HIAC and CS 
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed 
company shall not hold any execu�ve posi�on in 
any other company at the same �me:

Clearly define respec�ve roles, responsibili�es 
and du�es of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be 
removed from their posi�on without approval of 
the Board as well as immediate dissemina�on to 
the Commission and stock exchange(s).

The MD or CEO and CFO shall cer�fy to the Board 
that they have reviewed financial statements for 
the year and that to the best of their knowledge 
and belief:

Requirement to a�end Board of Directors’ 
Mee�ngs:
A�endance of MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC in 
the mee�ngs of the Board

Availability of Code of Conduct on the website of 
the Company 

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Execu�ve Officer

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company:

MD or CEO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS).-

Du�es of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Execu�ve Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Mee�ng of the Board of Directors:
Mee�ng of the Board of Directors  shall conduct 
Board mee�ngs and record the minutes as per BSS 

See "Annexure-B" &  " Annexure-C" 

The code of conduct as recommended 
by NRC and approved by the Board is in 
place

Available at 
www.heidelbergcementbd.com

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

The Company has duly appointed the 
MD, CFO, CS and HIAC.
They are different individuals.

No such case was found in the year 
under review.

All are a�endee in each Board of 
Directors' mee�ng. 

See "Annexure-A"

Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.
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Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.

Does not contain materially untrue statement 
and omit any material fact in the financial 
statements cer�fied by MD & CFO
True & fair view of financial statements cer�fied 
by MD & CFO
Cer�fica�on of MD and CFO regarding financial 
statements 
Annual Report contains cer�fica�on of MD & 
CFO on financial statements

An Audit Commi�ee 
A Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee 

Audit Commi�ee as sub-commi�ee of the Board
Assistance of the Audit Commi�ee to the Board 

Responsible to the Board and the du�es of the 
Audit Commi�ee shall be clearly set forth in wri�ng

Audit Commi�ee composi�on: at least 3 members

All members are to be non-execu�ve directors 
except chairman of the board and one member 
shall be an independent director

Financial literacy & minimum 10 years’ experience 
of members  

Vacancy of office of audit commi�ee member, in 
case of his/ her expiry or inability to hold office 
cause to lower the number  below 3, the Board 
shall fill up the vacancy within 1 month

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of 
the Commi�ee

At least 1 (one) independent director in quorum of 
the commi�ee

An independent director shall be Chairman of the 
commi�ee

Chairman in the absence of regular Chairman of 
the Commi�ee
Audit Commi�ee Chairman’s presence in Annual 
General Mee�ng

At least four mee�ngs in a financial year

Quorum: two members or 2/3 of total audit 
commi�ee member

Monitor choice of accoun�ng policies and Principles

Oversee hiring and performance of external Auditors
Monitor Internal Audit & Compliance Process

Oversee the financial repor�ng process

Chairperson of the Audit Commi�ee:

Mee�ng of the Audit Commi�ee:-

Role of Audit Commi�ee The Audit Commi�ee shall:-

Cons�tu�on of the Audit Commi�ee:

Audit Commi�ee
Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

Board of Directors’ Commi�ee 
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-commi�ees:

See "Annexure-A"

In place
In place

The Commi�ee duly discharged its 
responsibili�es
In prac�ce. The du�es are set forth as 
prescribed.

Three members are; 
1. Mr. Abdul Khalek, FCA
2. Ms. Sim Soek Peng and
3. Mr. Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA

All are non-execu�ve directors.

All have more than 10 years of 
experience jus�fied by NRC and Board 
during their appointment. 

The vacancy was promptly filled on 23 
October 2023, with the appointment of 
Mr. Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA, as 
an Independent Director, mee�ng the 
specified deadline.

Md. Emdadul Haque FCA , by virtue of 
his posi�on with the Company, is ac�ng 
as the secretary of the Commi�ee.
In prac�ce

Mr. Abdul Khalek, FCA, Independent 
Director of the Company is the Chairman 
of the Commi�ee.
No such case in the repor�ng year.

See "Report of the Audit Commi�ee for 
the year 2023" sec�on.

The Commi�ee discharge its du�es as 
the code prescribed.

In prac�ce
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Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.

Mee�ng with the external or statutory auditors for 
review of the annual financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval or adop�on

review along with the management, the annual 
financial statements before submission to the Board 
for approval
Review the quarterly and half yearly financial 
statements before submission to the board for 
approval

Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
before disclosing in the Annual Report;
Review statement of all related party transac�ons 
submi�ed by the management;
Review Management Le�ers or Le�er of Internal 
Control weakness issued by statutory auditors;

Oversee about the uses/applica�ons of funds raised 
through IPO or RPO or Rights Share Offer 

Repor�ng to the Board of Directors
Report on its ac�vi�es 
Report on conflicts of interests
Report on suspected or presumed fraud or 
irregularity or material defect in internal 
audit/financial statements
Report on suspected infringement of laws & 
regulatory compliances
Any other ma�er deems necessary to disclose
Any other ma�er deems necessary to disclose

Report on unreasonably ignored rec�fica�on to the 
Commission

NRC as a sub-commi�ee of the Board
Assists the Board in formula�ng NRC policy 
Clearly defined terms of reference of NRC

At least three members including an independent 
director
At least 02 (two) members of the Commi�ee shall be 
non-execu�ve directors.
Members of the Commi�ee shall be nominated and 
appointed by the Board
The Board reserve the authority to remove and 
appoint any member of the Commi�ee; 
The Board shall fill the vacancy within 180 days in case 
of death, resigna�on, disqualifica�on, or removal of 
any member

The Chairperson may appoint external expert for 
advice or sugges�on
The company secretary shall act as the secretary of 
the Commi�ee 

Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC)
Responsibility to the Board of Directors

Cons�tu�on of the NRC

Repor�ng of the Audit Commi�ee

Oversee the determina�on of audit fees based on 
scope and magnitude, level of exper�se deployed 
and �me required for effec�ve audit and evaluate the 
performance of external auditors

Review the adequacy of internal audit Func�on
The Commi�ee discharge its du�es as 

the code prescribed.

No such cases found

See "Report of the Audit Commi�ee for 
the year 2023" sec�on.

In place

In place

In place

In place

In place

The vacancy was promptly filled on 23 
October 2023, with the appointment of 
Mr. Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA, as 
an Independent Director, mee�ng the 
specified deadline.

See "Annexure-E"
The ToR is in place

See "Report of the Audit Commi�ee for 
the year 2023" sec�on.
All are non-execu�ve directors.

No remunera�on other than director 
fees/honorarium for any member

Quorum: at least an independent director

Md. Emdadul Haque FCA, by virtue of his 
posi�on with the Company, is ac�ng as 
the secretary of the Commi�ee.
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Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.

Mee�ng of the NRC

Chairperson of the NRC

Role of the NRC

External or Statutory Auditors

Chairman: an independent director

In the absence of regular Chairman, Chairman 
from other members

Mr. Mr. Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA, 
Independent Director of the Company is 
ac�ng as Chairman of the NRC.

No such case in the repor�ng year

Chairperson shall a�end the 35th AGM

See the "Report of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee for the year 
2023" sec�on.

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO
DO

DO

See the "Report of the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee for the year 
2023"

In prac�ce

In prac�ce

In prac�ce

The NRC performs as per the CG Codes

Chairman’s presence in annual general mee�ng 

At least one mee�ng in a financial year

Any emergency mee�ng upon request by any 
member of the NRC
Quorum: Higher of two members or 2/3 of total 
members including at least one independent 
director 
Confirma�on of minutes in the next mee�ng of 
the NRC

Shall be independent and responsible or 
accountable to the Board and to the shareholders

shall oversee, among others, the following ma�ers 
and make report with recommenda�on to the 
Board;
Remunera�on shall be reasonable and sufficient to 
a�ract, retain and mo�vate suitable directors to 
run the company successfully
Clear rela�onship among remunera�on,  
performance & benchmarks
Balance between fixed and incen�ve pay reflec�ng 
short and long-term performance objec�ves 
appropriate to the working of the company and its 
goals 
Devising a policy on Board’s diversity

Iden�fica�on of qualifica�on of directors and 
recommenda�on for appointment  and removal
Formula�ng the criteria for evalua�on of 
performance of independent directors and the 
Board
Iden�fying needs for employees and determine 
their selec�on, transfer or replacement and 
promo�on criteria
Developing, recommending and reviewing 
annually the company’s human resources and 
training policies
Nomina�on and remunera�on policy, the 
evalua�on criteria and ac�vi�es of NRC during the 
year in its annual report.

Not involved in appraisal or valua�on services or 
fairness opinions
Not involved financial informa�on systems design 
and implementa�on

Not involved as broker-dealer services
Not involved in actuarial services

Not involved in book-keeping or other services 
related to the accoun�ng records or financial 
statements

Not involved in internal audit services or special 
audit services

See Annexure-E �tled "Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Policy"
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Compliance Status                                           
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column)

Complied Not complied

Remarks (if any)TitleCondi�on No.

Not involved in any service that the Audit 
Commi�ee determines
Not involved in audit or cer�fica�on services on 
compliance of corporate governance
Not involved in any other service that creates 
conflict of interest
No partner or his/ her family or employees of the 
external audit firms hold any share at least 
during audit work
 Auditors’ or their representa�ve presence in the 
AGM

An official website linked with the website of the 
stock exchange

Available detailed disclosures on its website as 
required under the lis�ng regula�ons of the 
stock exchange(s).

Compliance cer�ficate on Corporate Governance 
Code of the Commission in the Annual Report.

The compliance auditor shall be appointed by 
the shareholders in the AGM

Compliance status as Annexure-C in the direc-
tors’ report

A website func�onal from the date of lis�ng

Maintaining a website by the Company

Repor�ng and Compliance of Corporate Governance

DO

DO

DO

DO

The Auditor duly a�ended the 34th 
AGM of the Company

Company Website is duly linked with 
those of the stock exchanges

The Cer�ficate of Compliance 
obtained from Hoque Bha�acharjee 
Das & Co. is duly presented in the 
Annual Report

The appointment of Hoque 
Bha�acharjee Das & Co.  as 
compliance auditor was duly approved 
by the shareholders in the 34th AGM

Detailed status is given at Annexure - C 
and published in the Report.

In place

In place
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ANNEXURE-D

Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH

Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH

Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH

Director Legal

As per condi�on no. 1(5) (xxiii)

The pa�ern on shareholding as on 31 December 2023

Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.
Formerly known as HeidelbergCement Netherlands Holding B.V. 

1

Mr. Kevin Gerard Gluskie
(Nominee of Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.)

(Nominee of Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.)

(Nominee of Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.)

(Nominee of Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.)

(Nominee of Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.)

Mr. Md. Shahjahan Majumder, FCA

Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V. 1



ANNEXURE-E
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As per condi�on No. 6(5) (c)

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy (the “Policy”)

1. Preamble  

HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (the “Company”) is commi�ed to excel in every sphere of its ac�vity by a�rac�ng and 
retaining qualified, talented and experienced professionals through an efficient selec�on and evalua�on mechanism. 

The Board of Directors of the Company has cons�tuted a Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee (the “Commi�ee”) on 15 
October 2018 to perform the delegated func�ons and to formulate a policy for nomina�on, appointment and remunera�on of 
directors (the “Directors”) and top level execu�ves (the “Top Level Execu�ves”) of the Company. 

The terms of reference of the Commi�ee are as follows: 

 a) To formulate the criteria for determining the qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of a Director and  
  recommend a policy to the Board rela�ng to the remunera�on of the Directors and Top Level Execu�ves, taking  
  into account the following:

  i. the level and composi�on of remunera�on should be reasonable and sufficient to a�ract, retain and mo�vate  
   suitable directors and senior management to run the Company successfully;

  ii. the rela�onship of remunera�on to performance should be clear and meets appropriate performance bench  
  marks; and

  iii. the remunera�on of Directors and Top Level Execu�ves should involve a balance between fixed and incen�ve  
   pay reflec�ng short and long-term performance objec�ves appropriate for the Company and its goals;

 b) To devise a policy on the Board’s diversity taking into considera�on age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educa�onal  
  background, and na�onality;

 c) To iden�fy persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top level execu�ve  
  posi�ons in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

 d) To formulate the criteria for evalua�on of the performance of independent directors and the Board;

 e) To iden�fy the Company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selec�on, transfer or  
  replacement and promo�on criteria; and

 f) To develop, recommend and review annually the Company’s human resources and training policies.

In consequence thereof, the Company has developed this Policy in accordance with condi�on 6(1)(b) of the Corporate Governance 
Code no�fied by the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC) dated 3 June 2018 (the “Code”).

This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee for iden�fying persons who are qualified 
to be appointed as Directors on the Board (including independent Directors) and those who may be appointed to fill the Top Level 
Execu�ve posi�ons. The Policy also sets out the guiding principles for determining the remunera�on of Directors, Top Level Execu�ves 
and other employees.
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2. Defini�ons

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company;

“HR Policy” means the human resources policy as framed by the Management which is applicable to all employees of the Company, 
as the same may be amended or modified from �me to �me;

“Independent Director” means a Director as defined under condi�on 1 of the Code, as amended from �me to �me;

“Remunera�on” means any money or its equivalent is given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes 
perquisites as defined under the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984;

“Top Level Execu�ve” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team (the “Management”), 
including the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Execu�ve Officer (CEO), Chief Opera�ng Officer (COO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), 
Director Human Resources, Director Marke�ng and Sales, Director Purchasing and Logis�cs, Technical Director, Head of Internal 
Audit and Compliance (HIAC), Head of Legal and Corporate Affairs, Company Secretary (CS) or posi�ons of equivalent level or rank; 
and

3. Scope

This policy is applicable to:

  Directors (Execu�ve & Non-Execu�ve, including Independent Directors)
  Top Level Execu�ves

4. Criteria for iden�fica�on of Directors and Top Level Execu�ves

The Commi�ee shall review poten�al candidates for appointment as Director and for filling Top Level Execu�ve posi�ons and give its 
recommenda�ons to the Board. In evalua�ng the suitability of poten�al candidates the Commi�ee may take into account factors, 
such as:

       a. Qualifica�ons for appointment as Director (Including Independent Directors)

  Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;
  Educa�onal and professional background;
  Leadership skills, standing in the profession;
  Business knowledge, relevant competencies and skills, and experience;
  Actual or poten�al conflicts of interest, if any;
  Any applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1994 and the Rules made thereunder; and
  The requirements under condi�on 1 & 3(1) of the Code. 

       In par�cular, the Commi�ee shall seek to appoint Directors with the following posi�ve a�ributes:

       b. Posi�ve a�ributes of Directors (including Independent Directors)

  Individuals having eminence, standing and knowledge with significant achievements in business, professions and/or  
  public service;
  Individuals who hold sound financial or business literacy/skills;
  Directors are to demonstrate integrity, credibility, trustworthiness, ability to handle conflict construc�vely and the  
  willingness to address issues proac�vely;
  Ac�vely update their knowledge and skills with the latest developments in the industry, market condi�ons and  
  applicable legal provisions;
  Willingness to devote sufficient �me and a�en�on to the Company’s business and to effec�vely carry out du�es  
  and responsibili�es;
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  To assist in bringing independent judgment to bear on the Board’s delibera�ons especially on issues of strategy,  
  performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct;
  Ability to develop a good working rela�onship with other Board members and contribute to the Board’s working  
  rela�onship with the senior management of the Company; and
  To act within their authority to assist in protec�ng the legi�mate interests of the Company, its shareholders and  
  employees.

       c. Independence of Directors

  Independent Directors shall meet the requirements set out under the Companies Act, 1994 read with the Rules made  
  thereunder, as amended from �me to �me, and in par�cular condi�ons 1(2) & (3) of the Code.

       d. Appointment of Top Level Execu�ves

       Top Level Execu�ves shall:
  possess the required qualifica�ons, experience, skills & exper�se to effec�vely discharge their respec�ve du�es and  
  responsibili�es;
  prac�ce and encourage professionalism and a transparent working environment; and
  adhere strictly to the Company’s Code of Conduct and other compliance policies.

The Commi�ee shall have the discre�on to consider and fix any other criteria or norms for selec�on of the most suitable 
candidates. The Commi�ee may also ins�tute an inquiry into the background and qualifica�ons of the poten�al candidates.

5. Board Diversity

The Commi�ee in nomina�ng candidates for appointment to the Board shall ensure sufficient diversity in representa�on in terms 
of age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educa�onal background, and na�onality.

6. Remunera�on

In order to sufficiently a�ract, retain and mo�vate Execu�ve Directors and Top Level Execu�ves to run the Company successfully, 
the remunera�on shall be comprised of fixed and performance based components as detailed below: 

       i) Fixed Remunera�on

The fixed remunera�on shall be determined for each grade of employees and Top Level Execu�ves a�er taking into account the 
compara�ve remunera�on profile with respect to industry scale of the Company’s business, cri�cality of the posi�on and 
competencies and experience of the person. It shall be the Company’s endeavor to pay fixed remunera�on which will:

  a�ract, retain and mo�vate professionals required to successfully run the Company;
  encourage people to perform to their highest poten�al;
  align the performance of the business with the performance of key individuals and teams within the Company;
  allow the Company to compete in each relevant employment market;
  ensure par�cipa�on in Workers’ Profit Par�cipa�on Fund (WPPF) as per the Bangladesh Labour Code, 2006 and the  
  Bangladesh Labour Rules, 2015.
 
       ii) Performance Based Remunera�on: 

 (a) Performance Management System (PMS)

The Company has a detailed and structured PMS. Based on the review of performance through the PMS process, the 
Company shall assess the employees’ competencies, eligibility for promo�on and salary increment. The MD shall from 
�me to �me decide the annual increments / mid-term revisions to be given to employees as per the guidelines set out in 
this Policy and the Company’s HR Policy. The MD is also authorized to approve the policies for giving loans/financial 
assistance to the employees.
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 (b) Variable Pay

The Company shall reward Execu�ve Directors and Top Level Execu�ves based on the Company’s performance and their 
own individual performance to create a strong rela�onship between performance and remunera�on. The percentage of 
performance based remunera�on / variable pay in the total remunera�on package of each employee shall be determined 
according to such employee’s level in the organiza�on so as to ensure that the remunera�on package is fairly balanced to 
a�ract, retain and mo�vate skilled professionals. 

The variable pay shall be divided into two parts, of which the first part would be dependent on the Company’s 
performance which shall be measured in financial terms such as achievement of targeted EBIT or Net Profit during the 
previous calendar year. The other part shall depend upon the individual employee’s performance against the targets set 
in the goal agreement with the Company. The weightage of the Company performance vis-a-vis individual performance in 
the variable pay may range from 40 to 60 percent depending upon seniority of the concerned employee in the 
organiza�on structure.

There shall be a goal agreement se�ng out the annual objec�ves/targets of an individual employee cascading from the 
organiza�onal goals. These annual objec�ves/targets shall be:

  Formulated clearly, i.e. goals must be described in a concrete, precise and comprehensible manner;
  Can be influenced, i.e. the employee must have a decisive influence on the goal’s achievement;  
  Realis�c, fair and challenging, i.e. it must be possible for the employee to achieve a goal without being under-challenged  
  or over-challenged; and
  Must be able to measure whether the goal has been achieved, i.e. by means of quan�ta�ve standards (key figures)  
  or qualita�ve standards (quality criteria based on common defini�ons) defined and ascertained during target se�ng.

The aforesaid objec�ves shall strike a balance between short-term and long-term goals of the Company. The progress of 
the employees towards the achievement of the objec�ves shall be reviewed together with the employee’s line manager 
at the appropriate �me following the end of each calendar year.

The remunera�on/si�ng fees, as the case may be, for the Non-Execu�ve / Independent Directors, shall be in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder for the �me being in force or as may be decided by the 
Commi�ee/Board/shareholders.

7. Re�rement Benefits

The Company shall comply with the applicable laws for payment of re�rement benefits such as Provident Fund and Gratuity.

8. Termina�on Payments

Each employment contract shall set out in advance the no�ce period in case of resigna�on/termina�on of employment or the 
payment to be made in lieu thereof.

9. Review and Amendment

The Commi�ee and the Board of Directors reserve the right to amend or modify this Policy in whole or in part, at any �me, without 
assigning any reason whatsoever.



As per condi�on no. 46 of DSE Lis�ng Regula�on dated 30th June 2015

Cer�ficate of membership of BAPLC

OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES:

The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, mainly from the policy and regulatory fronts, and is  prepared to 
meet those by systema�c control.
The Company’s IPO was made in the Eigh�es. No further issue of any instrument was made during the year.
From incep�on, the financial results of the Company have con�nued to grow as reflected in the yearly financial statements 
of the Company.
As per IFRS/IAS presenta�on of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be presented as extraordinary 
gain or loss in the financial statements. Accordingly, no extraordinary gain or loss has been recognized in the financial 
statements.
No significant varia�ons have occurred between the quarterly and annual financial results of the Company during 2023.
During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of BDT 402k as Board mee�ng a�endance fees. The remunera�on of 
Directors has been men�oned in Note No. 42 of the Financial Statements.
All significant devia�ons from the previous year in opera�ng results of the Company have been highlighted and reasons 
thereof have been explained.
Key opera�ng and financial data of the last five years have been presented in summarized form on page no. 11.
The Company has declared a 25% cash dividend for the year 2023.

ANNEXURE-F


















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ANNEXURE-G

[As per condi�on No. 1(5) (xxv)]

Management Discussion and Analysis of the Company’s posi�on and opera�on along with a 
brief discussion of changes in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.
In compliance with Condi�on No. 1(5)(xxv) of the Corporate Governance Code as issued by the BSEC vide its no�fica�on 
dated June 3, 2018; a brief Management analysis is given of the Company’s posi�on and opera�ons and changes in the 
financial statements, among others, focusing, on the following issues:

Accoun�ng Policies and es�ma�on for prepara�on of financial statements: Accoun�ng Policies and es�ma�on for the 
prepara�on of financial statements have been detailed under Note No. 2 & 3 of the Audited Financial Statements.

Compara�ve analysis (including effects of infla�on) of financial performance or results and financial posi�on as well 
as cash flow for the current year with immediate preceding five years: See “Compara�ve Financial Highlights” on 
page no. 11.

Compare such financial performance or results and financial posi�on as well as cash flows with peer industry 
scenario: HCBL adopts calendar year as its financial year i.e. January to December of each year. Except for a peer 
company all other peer companies of the industry adopt July to June as their financial year. Hence, a good 
comparison with peer-listed companies is imprac�cal. The data provided below has been extracted from their latest 
annual report. The financial results & financial posi�on as on June 30, 2023, and December 31, 2023 have been 
considered.

BDT= Bangladeshi Taka, HEIDELBCEM = HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Ltd., LHBL = LafargeHolcim Bangladesh Ltd., ARAMIT-
CEM = Aramit Cement Ltd., CONFIDCEM= Confidence Cement Limited, CROWNCEMNT= Crown Cement PLC., MEGHNACEM 
= Meghna Cement Mills Ltd., PREMIERCEM= Premier Cement Mills PLC, EPS = Earnings Per Share, NAVPS = Net Asset Value 
Per Share, NOCFPS = Net Opera�ng Cash Flows Per Share.

Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe: The Directors’ Report and the 
Chairman’s Statement have explained the financial and economic scenario of the country and the global impact.

Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk and concerns mi�ga�on plan of the 
Company: This issue has been elaborated in the Directors’ Report as well as in Note No. 44B of the Financial 
Statements.

Future plan or projec�on or forecast for the company’s opera�on, performance, and financial posi�on, with 
jus�fica�on thereof, i.e. actual posi�on shall be explained to the shareholders in the next AGM: The shareholders 
shall be updated on the future plans at the Annual General Mee�ng and also by communica�ons �me to �me.

 

Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Revenue

Gross Profit

Net Profit A�er Tax

Dividend

EPS (Taka)

NAVPS (Taka)

NOCFPS (Taka)

(BDT in Million)

24,183

3,765

610

20%

Nil

4.11

52.22

11.43

-

-

5,942

50%

Nil

5.12

19.14

6.83

SI.
No.

31-Dec-23
HCBL

30-Jun-23
CROWNCEMNTItems

3,524

664

17

5%

5%

0.57

50.58

54.43

30-Jun-23
MEGHNACEM

21,833

2,020

-842

10%

Nil

-7.99

59.33

5.84

30-Jun-23
PREMIERCEM

4,544

310

264

5%

5%

3.21

69.8

-3.03

17,956

2,068

459

25%

Nil

8.13

67.2

21.78

30-Jun-23
CONFIDCEM

135

-118

-581

Nil

Nil

-17.14

-4.49

1.5

30-Jun-23
ARAMITCEM 

31-Dec-23
LHBL

Cash

Stock

1.

2.

3. 

4.

5.

6.

Dated Dhaka, 06 March 2024
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ANNEXURE-H
HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

1. Preamble
HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (“HCBL” or the “Company”) is commi�ed to driving superior value crea�on for all its 
stakeholders, with a focus on the future growth and long-term interests of the Company as well as its shareholders. With this 
in mind, the Board aims to pursue a progressive dividend policy.

The Company has developed its Dividend Distribu�on Policy (hereina�er referred to as the “Policy”) pursuant to the 
Bangladesh Securi�es Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) Direc�ve No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated January 14, 2021. 
This Policy is published in the Company’s Annual Report as well as on its Official Website. 

In considering any distribu�on of profits, the Board shall have regard to, inter alia, the Company’s business and growth 
strategies and plans, the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company as well as applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1994 
and Rules framed thereunder, BSEC Regula�ons, Tax Regula�ons, and other applicable legisla�on.

2. Defini�ons
“Act” means The Companies Act, 1994;
“AGM” means Annual General Mee�ng;
“Board” means the Board of Directors of HCBL;
“Record Date” means the cut-off date established in order to determine which shareholders are eligible to receive a dividend 
or distribu�on; 
“Shareholders” means Members whose names are registered in the Members’ Register of the Company;
“Shares” means Ordinary Equity Shares of the Company.

3. Objec�ve 
The objec�ve of this Policy is to specify the criteria to be considered by the Board when declaring/recommending dividends 
for a financial year and to provide clarity to shareholders on the profit distribu�on of the Company and the circumstances 
under which shareholders may or may not expect a dividend.

4. Dividend Eligibility
As at the date of this Policy, the Company has no other classes of shares other than equity shares with value of BDT 10 each. 
Hence, shareholders will be considered eligible for dividends if their names appear in the members’ register of the Company 
on the Record Date as declared by the Board for a par�cular financial year.

5. Concept of Dividend
Dividend is the share of the profit that the Company decides to distribute amongst its shareholders. The profits earned by 
the Company can be retained in the business, distributed amongst the shareholders as Dividend, or a combina�on of the 
two. The Act allows the Company to declare and pay interim as well as final dividends. Interim dividend, where applicable, is 
the dividend declared by the Board of Directors between any two Annual General Mee�ngs as and when considered 
appropriate. 

6. Parameters to be Considered While Declaring Dividends.
      6.1 The following financial parameters may be considered by the Board while recommending/declaring dividend:
        a) Adequacy of profits calculated in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and Accoun�ng Standards.  
 The Board of Directors may, in excep�onal circumstances, consider u�lizing retained earnings for declara�on of  
 dividend subject to the provisions of the law.
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        b) The Board may consider the following financial parameters while recommending/declaring dividend, namely:
 - Financial Performance for the year for which dividend is recommended; 
 - Accumulated Reserves; 
 - Earnings stability;
 - Any interim dividend paid;
 - Impact of dividend pay-out on Return on Equity;
 - Future capital expenditure;
 - Internal capital planning framework/policy;
 - Cash flow posi�on; 
 - Tax implica�ons if any, on the distribu�on of dividends;
 - Cost of raising funds from alternate sources of capital;
 - Corporate ac�ons including mergers/demergers, acquisi�ons, and addi�onal investments including expansion  
  plans and investment in subsidiaries/associates;
 - Leverage profile and debt repayment schedules and, under excep�onal circumstances, the amount of  
  con�ngent liabili�es; 
 - Such other factors and/or material events which the Board may consider.

      6.2 The following non-financial factors may also be considered by the Board while recommending/declaring  
 dividend:
 - Shareholder expecta�ons; 
 - Economic environment;
 - Industry outlook;
 - Inorganic growth plans;   
 - Stage of the business cycle; 
 - Dividend payout history;
 - Trend of Interest rate and Monetary Policy;  
 - Reinvestment opportuni�es;
 - The economic, legal and regulatory framework, government policies, etc. 

7. Declara�on of Dividend 
The Board in each financial year has the absolute discre�on to recommend dividends out of the year’s profits a�er se�ng 
off carried over losses of the previous year(s) and deprecia�on not provided in the previous year(s) or out of any 
undistributed profits or any retained earnings subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Company’s AGM. No 
dividend shall be declared or paid out of the capital reserve account or the revalua�on reserve account or any unrealized 
gain or through reducing paid-up capital. 

Before declara�on of dividend, the Company may transfer a por�on of its profits to reserves of the Company as may be 
considered appropriate by the Board at its discre�on.

Dividend pay-out is an important decision as it determines the share of profit to be distributed amongst the shareholders 
and share of profit to be retained in the business. A balance needs to be struck between appropriately rewarding 
shareholders through dividends and retaining profits to maintain a healthy capital adequacy ra�o and support the future 
growth of the business. As such, shareholders may not normally expect to receive dividends under some of the following 
circumstances (which may not be exhaus�ve), subject to the discre�on of the Board: 
 - Company needing funds for expansion, diversifica�on, acquisi�on, deleveraging or capital expenditure; 
 - Where the Company has incurred losses or inadequacy of profits;
 - Alterna�ve forms of distribu�on such as share buyback;
 - Challenging circumstances such as adverse economic cycles and industry projec�ons, pressure on cash flows  
  on account of various factors such as debt repayment, payments due to changes in legisla�ve or tax framework  
  etc. 

The Management shall apprise the Board of the relevant facts and figures to facilitate prudent dividend declara�on.
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8. U�liza�on of Retained Earnings
Retained earnings may be u�lized for declara�on of dividend (interim/final), issuance of stock dividend/bonus shares, 
repayment of debt, capital expenditure, organic and/or inorganic growth plans, general corporate purposes (including 
con�ngencies), and such other purposes as may be permi�ed under the Act and other applicable regula�ons.

9. Parameters With Regard to Various Classes of Shares
Since the Company has issued only one class of equity shares with equal vo�ng rights, all the members of the Company are 
en�tled to receive the same amount of dividend per their shareholding. The Policy may be revisited as and when any new 
classes of shares are issued.

10. Income Tax Impact on Dividend Declara�on
Bangladesh Income Tax law provides for addi�onal tax charges to a listed company that retains more than 70% of its net 
a�er-tax profit earned in any year. According to the said provision if the Company retains or transfers more than 70% of its 
a�er-tax profit to reserves or any other fund, an addi�onal 10% tax shall be payable on such retained or transferred fund. 
Moreover, in order to encourage cash dividend, the tax law requires that if in any income year, the stock dividend declared 
by the company exceeds the cash dividend, an addi�onal 10% tax shall be imposed on the whole amount of stock dividend 
declared or distributed.

11. Management of Unclaimed Dividend
The management of unclaimed dividends will be governed by the rules and regula�ons issued by the Bangladesh Securi�es 
and Exchange Commission.
 

12. Mode of Payment of Dividend
Dividend payments may be made through the following modes:

 a. Using Bangladesh Electronic Funds Transfer Network (BEFTN) for shareholders holding shares in dematerialized  
  form; and
 b. Issuing Dividend Warrant for shareholders who hold shares in rematerialized/paper form.

13. Review & Modifica�on of Dividend Distribu�on Policy 
This Policy may be reviewed and revised periodically when considered necessary by the Board. Where a Dividend is proposed 
to be declared based on parameters other than those men�oned in this Policy, such changes shall be disclosed along with 
the accompanying ra�onale.

14. Disclaimer
This Policy may not be construed as either solici�ng investments in the Company’s securi�es or assuring guaranteed returns 
(in any form whatsoever) for investments made in the Company’s securi�es. The Policy serves as a guide for the Board. The 
decision of the Board concerning the amount of dividend proposed shall be conclusive.

In the event of any conflict between the Policy and the exis�ng statutory regula�ons, the statutory regula�ons shall prevail. 

15. Policy Approval and Effec�ve Date
This Policy was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors in its mee�ng held on 27 July 2021 and became effec�ve from 
such date.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the 
statement of financial posi�on as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements 
including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on of the 
Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note 3.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs). Our responsibili�es under those standards 
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Interna�onal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC), and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibili�es in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye 
Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Ma�ers
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 April 2023.

Key Audit Ma�ers
Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
and separate financial statements of the current period. These ma�ers were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these ma�ers.

Descrip�on of Key Audit Ma�ers Our Responce to the Key Audit Ma�ers
Revenue recogni�on and valua�on of receivables

The Company generates revenue by selling cement primarily in 
domes�c market as well as some deemed exports.

In 2023, the Company earned BDT 17,956 million in revenue, 
which is 7% increase over the previous year's revenue of BDT 
16,767 million. The increase in revenue primarily driven by 
higher selling prices and with marginal increase in sales 
quan�ty of sales.

To ensure that revenue recogni�on is appropriate, the 
management carefully evaluates the collectability of credit 
sales to customers. The Company has implemented policy of 
requiring advance payment from dealer sales, as well as other 
credit enhancement mechanism which has helped to improve 
the realizability of revenue.

Due to inherent risk associated with determina�on of revenues 
and recovery of accounts receivable balance as well as 
difficul�es in forecas�ng expected credit loss in case of default 
by debtors this area require significant es�mate and judgment. 

Therefore, we have considered this area as a key audit ma�er.

We have tested the design and opera�ng effec�veness of key 
controls focusing on the following:

• Understanding of the key controls related to the contracts 
with customers, goods delivery and invoicing process, and 
sanc�oning of discount and commissions. 

• Assessment of the five step model for revenue recogni�on 
adopted by the Company in line with IFRS 15: Revenue, 
including cut-off point to sa�sfy performance obliga�on.

• Credit approval process and assigning credit limit to a 
customer including collec�on of security related 
documents to mi�gate/minimize loss in customer default;

 
• Periodic balance confirma�on from debtors;

• Monitoring process for overdue receivables; and

• Company’s policy of crea�ng provision against overdue 
receivables and periodic write off in line with IFRS 9.

Our substan�ve procedures in rela�on to the assessing 
valua�on of receivables comprises the following:
• Reconcilia�on of debtors ageing to general ledger;

• Conduc�ng cut-off tes�ng at the year-end;

• Reviewing subsequent receipt of receivables balance;

• Comparing current year rebate accruals to the prior year 
and issuance of credit notes post year-end; and

• Recalcula�on of provision for trade receivables as required 
by IFRS 9 and compared against actual write off/loss on 
repossession in prior periods.

See note number 3.15, 8 and 24 for details



Valua�on of inventories

The Company's financial statement as at 31 December 2023 
reflects a total inventory of BDT 1,590 million. It is worth no�ng 
that the inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value, as per the relevant accoun�ng standards.

Given the nature of the inventory, which includes bulk 
quan��es such as clinker, gypsum, slag, limestone, fly ash, and 
cement, the measurement process requires specialized 
exper�se. Therefore, management has engaged external 
professionals to accurately measure the quan�ty of the 
inventory at year-end.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value (NRV). As a result, management has applied judgement in 
determining the appropriate values for inventories which may 
be slow-moving or obsolete and need to apply impairment 
provision crea�ng valua�on risk.
 
While excess holding of inventories could impact efficient use 
of working capital, similarly lower level of inventories can result 
in stock outs or irregular supply to the market.

Furthermore, the Company reported raw material 
consump�on of BDT 13,745 million for the current year, which 
is marginally lower than prior year despite some growth in 
sales revenue during the same period.

Price of raw materials is influenced by interna�onal market 
prices, foreign currency fluctua�ons and other economic and 
geopoli�cal events.

Therefore, this area we have considered as a key audit ma�er.

We evaluated the design and implementa�on of key inventory 
controls opera�ng across the Company. We also reviewed 
management's process of iden�fying slow-moving and 
obsolete inventories and determining net realizable value of 
the inventories. Apart from that, we conducted the following 
ac�vi�es:

• We observed physical inventory counts and reviewed the 
reconcilia�on process of the count results to the inventory 
records maintained in the system.

• reviewing the survey reports of inventories prepared by 
the external experts, considering competence of the 
experts, adequacy of their work and the methods and 
judgment used by them;

• conduc�ng survey of our own expert to evaluate the 
accuracy of the Company's external expert's survey result;

• We reviewed the historical accuracy of inventory 
provisioning, and the level of inventory write-offs during 
the year;

• evalua�ng the Company's accoun�ng treatment of the 
changes in the prices of raw materials, including the 
appropriateness of the related disclosures in the financial 
statements.

• We compared the net realizable value on test basis 
through a review of subsequent period sales and the cost 
price of a sample of inventories and comparison to the 
associated provision to assess whether inventory 
provisions are complete.

We discussed with management about their sales forecas�ng 
procedures and ordering of stocks, and inquired about 
remedial ac�on taken in case of access or shortage of 
inventories due to difference in forecast and actual results. 

See note number 3,6 and 7 for details

Valua�on of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) including impairment assessment of other items of PP&E

PPE is a significant asset category for the Company, and its 
carrying amount as at the year-end is BDT 4,809 million. The 
Company's PPE comprises various types of assets, including 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment. The Company's 
financial statements recognize PPE at cost, and subsequent to 
ini�al recogni�on, PPE is carried at cost less accumulated 
deprecia�on and impairment losses.

The valua�on of PPE requires significant management 
judgment and es�ma�on, including determining the useful 
lives of assets, assessing the residual values, and es�ma�ng the 
cost of dismantling/assets re�rement obliga�on. Addi�onally, 
there is an inherent risk of misstatement in the valua�on of PPE 
due to the complexity and diversity of the asset category.

Our audit procedures for recogni�on and valua�on of proper 
plant and equipment (PPE) included:

• obtaining an understanding of the Company's policies and 
procedures for the recogni�on and valua�on of PPE 
including the ini�al recogni�on of assets, useful lives and 
residual values of assets, and the assessment of 
impairment losses;

• evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of th 
Company's internal controls over PPE recogni�on an 
valua�on;

• reviewing and tes�ng the Company's PPE balance to 
ensure its accuracy and completeness;

• tes�ng the accuracy and completeness of PPE addi�ons 
disposals, and impairment charges to ensure that all 
transac�ons are properly recorded in the accoun�ng 
system;

• reviewing the Company's maintenance records to ensure 
that the repairs and maintenance expenses are correctly 
classified as opera�ng expenses and that any significant 
repairs are capitalized as part of the PPE;

• conduc�ng physical verifica�on of fixed assets to verify the 
existence in line with the fixed asset register and relevant 
documents;

• making a cross-check between the manual asset register 
and SAP system-generated register to match up the value 
of PPE recorded in the system with the actual assets held 
by the Company.

See note number 3.3 and 4 for details 
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Repor�ng on other informa�on

Management is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises all of the informa�on in the Annual Report 
other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us 
a�er the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on iden�fied above when 
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate 
the ma�er to those charged with governance. 

Responsibili�es of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements of the Company in accordance 
with IFRSs as explained in note 3, the Companies Act 1994, Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Rules 2020 and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing these financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process.

Legal, regulatory and other compliance ma�ers

The Company being a listed en�ty, the Company has to 
maintain compliance with the requirements of the Bangladesh 
Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC) including the 
rules, lis�ng regula�ons, corporate governance code and other 
direc�ves issued from �me to �me.

The Company also has several legal proceedings, claims and 
inquiries pending that expose it to significant li�ga�on and 
similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings. 
Such ma�ers are subject to many uncertain�es and the 
outcome may be difficult to predict.

Overall, the legal provision represents the Company's best 
es�mate for exis�ng legal ma�ers that have a probable and 
es�mable impact on the Company's financial posi�on.

We obtained an understanding of the Company's key controls 
over the legal and regulatory compliance process. To get more 
insights we performed following procedures:

• enquired the Company's internal legal council for all 
significant li�ga�on and regulatory ma�ers;

• assessed the Company's provisions and con�ngent 
liabili�es disclosure;

• reviewed the controls related to Corporate Governance 
compliance and repor�ng compliance as per BSEC 
guidelines;

• obtaining legal confirma�on from the panel of legal 
advisors of the Company to assess the risk of uncertainty 
on disputes.

• assessed the Company's compliance with the BSEC direc�ve 
dated 14 January 2021 on unclaimed dividend and BSEC 
no�fica�on BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/10/admin/118 dated 
22 March 2021 on related party transac�ons.
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Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skep�cism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informa�on of the en��es or business ac�vi�es within the 
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direc�on, supervision and 
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most significance 
in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. 
We describe these ma�ers in our auditors’ report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securi�es and Exchange Rules 2020, we also report that:

The engagement partner on the audit resul�ng in this independent auditor’s report is Sabbir Ahmed, FCA.
   

Date: 06 March 2024
DVC: 2403060770AS901778

Sabbir Ahmed, FCA, Partner
ICAB Enrolment no 770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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(i) we have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were  
      necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verifica�on thereof;

(ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared   
     from our examina�on of those books;

(iii) the statement of financial posi�on and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income together with  
       the annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and

(iv) the expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company’s business.
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Statement of Financial Posi�on
As at 31 December 2023

These financial statements should be read in conjunc�on with annexed notes.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Dated, 06 March 2024
DVC: 2403060770AS901778

See our annexed report of same date

Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA
Director & Chief Financial Officer

Md. Emdadul Haque, FCA
Company Secretary

Sabbir Ahmed, FCA
Partner
Enrollment No.: 0770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co 
Chartered Accountants

Assets
Non-current assets

4 4,809,929 5,012,834 
Lease assets-RoU 4.2 517,250 580,207 
Capital works-in-progress 5 201,615 207,175 
Intangible assets 6 66,565 78,035 
Total non-current assets 5 ,595 ,358 5 ,878 ,250 

Current assets
Inventories 7 1,590,884 2,004,964 

8 449,257 501,732 
9 670,908 164,739 

Tax assets 22 19,895 - 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 4,295,692 230,109 
Total current assets 7 ,026 ,637 2 ,901 ,545 
Total assets 12 ,621 ,995      8 ,779 ,795        

Equity and liabili�es
Capital and reserves
Share capital 11 565,036 565,036 
Reserve 12 141,607 141,607 
General reserve 15,000 15,000 
Dividend equaliza�on fund 8,600 8,600 
Retained earnings 3,066,612 2,663,706 

3 ,796 ,856        3 ,393 ,949 

Non-current liabili�es
Suppliers' credit-blocked 13 2,565 2,565 
Quasi equity loan 14 122,636 122,636 
ADP loan 14.1 12,699 12,699 
Provision for KP Je�y dismantling 115,696 110,752 
Borrowings 15 - 173,200 
Financial lease liabili�es-RoU-Long por�on 16 170,240 193,934 
Deferred tax liability 18 107,084 298,742 
Total non-current liabili�es 530 ,920 914 ,528 
Current liabili�es
Trade and other payables 19 3,885,588 3,588,903               
Bank overdra� 10 101,039 -                             
Borrowings 15.1 3,992,085 626,761                   
Finance lease liabili�es-RoU-Current por�on 16 53,268 85,749                      
Provision for workers profit par�cipa�on fund 20 41,401 -                             
Unclaimed dividend 21 - 110,336                   
Current tax liabili�es 22 220,838 59,570                      
Total current liabili�es 8 ,294 ,219 4 ,471 ,318 
Total liabili�es 8 ,825 ,139        5 ,385 ,846        
Total equity and liabili�es 12 ,621 ,995      8 ,779 ,795        

Notes 2023 
BDT '000

2022
BDT '000

Trade and other receivables

Property, plant and equipment

Advances, deposits and prepayments
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Notes 2023 
BDT '000

2022
BDT '000

Sales 24 17,955,715            16,766,939 
Cost of goods sold 25 (15,887,341) (15,691,907) 
Gross  profit 2,068,374 1,075,032 

Other opera�ng income / (expenses) 26 13,239 (3,797) 
Warehousing, distribu�on and selling expenses 27 (512,666) (475,770) 
Administra�ve expenses 28 (682,118) (616,579) 
Opera�ng profit/(loss) 886,830 (21,114) 

Net finance expenses 29 (58,814) (59,082) 
Contribu�on to workers' profit par�cipa�on fund 20 (41,401) -

Profit/(loss) before tax 786,615 (80,195) 

Income tax expense (327,205) (153,245) 

Current year 30 (511,815) (368,000) 
Prior year (7,047) -
Deferred tax income 18.2 191,657 214,755 

Profit/(loss) for the year 459,410 (233,441) 
Earn ings  per share (EPS) 31 8.13 -4.13

Profit/(loss) for the year 459,410 (233,441) 

Other comprehensive income

Item will not be reclassified  to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability net off related taxes - 10,898  
Total comprehensive income for the year 459,410 (222,543)  

These financial statements should be read in conjunc�on with annexed notes.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Dated, 06 March 2024
DVC: 2403060770AS901778

See our annexed report of same date

Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA
Director & Chief Financial Officer

Md. Emdadul Haque, FCA
Company Secretary

Sabbir Ahmed FCA
Partner
Enrollment No.: 0770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co 
Chartered Accountants



Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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These financial statements should be read in conjunc�on with annexed notes.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited

Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA
Director & Chief Financial Officer

Md. Emdadul Haque, FCA
Company Secretary

Par�culars
Share 

capital
Reserve

General 
reserve

Total

BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000
Year 2022
Balance as at 01 January 2022 565,036      141,607      15,000         8,600            3,033,158 3,763,401 
Payment of dividend for 2021 (146,909) (146,909) 
Net loss for the year - -                 - - 

- -                 - - 

- -                 - - 
(233,441) (233,441) 

Other Comprehensive income reversal 10,898 10,898 
Balance as at 31 December 2022 565,036  141,607  15,000    8,600 2,663,706 3,393,949 
Year 2023
Balance as at 01 January 2023 565,036 141,607      15,000         8,600 2,663,706 3,393,949 
Payment of dividend for 2022 (56,504) (56,504) 
Net profit for the year - -                 - - 

- -                 - - 
459,410 459,410 

Balance as at 31 December 2023 565,036  141,607  15,000 8,600 3,066,612  3,796,856 

Div idend  
equaliza�on

fund

Retained
earn ings



Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2023

* Cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdra� that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of 
cash management.
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These financial statements should be read in conjunc�on with annexed notes.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited

Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA
Director & Chief Financial Officer

Md. Emdadul Haque, FCA
Company Secretary

Notes 2023 
BDT '000

2022
BDT '000

Collec�ons from customers 32.1 18,026,208      16,663,718 
Cash received from other opera�ng income (6,040)                 14,081 
Cash paid to suppliers 32.2 (13,913,607)     (14,240,352) 
Cash paid for opera�ng expenses 32.3 (2,440,477)       (1,859,945) 
Adjustment/(Payment) of financial expenses net of exchange gain 553                      (2,532) 
Interest income 234,904             13,360 
Interest expenses (293,165)           (76,819) 
Income tax paid 33 (377,489) (296,838) 
Net cash  flow generated  from opera�ng ac�vi�es  (a) 1,230,888 214,671        

Acquisi�on of non-current assets (209,082) (223,354) 
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets 35 3,631 4,045 
Net cash  used  in inves�ng ac�vi�es  (b) (205,452)      (219,309) 

Proceeds from Bank Loan_UPAS 15.1 3,992,085 313,561 
Repayment of Bank Loan 15.1 (799,961) (313,200) 
Repayment of lease liabili�es (86,177) (83,469) 
Unclaimed devidend transferred to CMSF 36 (31,660) - 
Dividend paid 36 (135,180) (68,856) 
Net cash  flow used  in financing ac�vi�es  (c) 2,939,108 (151,964) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash  and  cash  equ ivalents  (a+b+c) 3,964,544 (156,603) 

Open ing cash  and  cash  equ ivalents 230,109 386,712 
Closing cash  and  cash  equ ivalents* 4,194,654 230,109 

Cash  flows  from opera�ng ac�vi�es

Cash  flows  from inves�ng ac�vi�es

Cash  flows  from financing ac�vi�es



Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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A project named Chi�agong Cement Factory was established under Central Ordinance No. XXXVIII of 1962. The factory 
started produc�on of Portland cement on 30 June 1974. The installed produc�on capacity was 300,000 MT per annum. 
The Project was therea�er incorporated as a private limited company named Chi�agong Cement Clinker Grinding Co Ltd 
(CCCGCL) on 30 June 1979 which was placed under Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corpora�on (BCIC) with effect from 1 
July 1982. This Company (CCCGCL) was converted into a public limited company in February 1989 a�er revalua�on of 
assets as well as finaliza�on of its net worth.
          
The Company commenced commercial produc�on of its another unit in Kanchpur  with effect from 1 November 1999. The 
produc�on capacity of this unit is 600,000 MT. On 10 April 2008, Kanchpur plant installed second mill with capacity of 
450,000 MT per annum, and on August 2019 Kanchpur Plant installed third mill with capacity of   472,000 MT per annum. 
Acquired Muktrpurtpur plant produc�on capacity is 660,000 MT. The total produc�on capacity of HCBL stands at 
3,510,000 MT per annum. 
     
The Company in its 5th Extraordinary General Mee�ng of shareholders held on 3 October 2002 approved the scheme of 
Amalgama�on of Scancement Interna�onal Limited and Scancement Bangladesh Limited with Chi�agong Cement Clinker 
Grinding Co. Limited, presently known as HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (HCBL/the Company). The Hon'ble High 
Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh sanc�oned the approval of the above Scheme of Amalgama�on by an 
order dated 11 January 2003.
      
The Company in its 8th Extraordinary General Mee�ng of shareholders held on 25 February 2020 approved the scheme of 
Amalgama�on of Meghna Energy  Limited with  HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (HCBL/the Company). The Hon'ble 
High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh sanc�oned the approval of the above Scheme of Amalgama�on 
by an order dated 22 July 2020. 
     
The Company in its 9th Extraordinary General Mee�ng of shareholders held on 02 May 2021 approved the scheme of 
Amalgama�on of Emirates Cement Bangladesh Limited (ECBL) and Emirates Power Company Limited (EPCL) with  
HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (HCBL/the Company). The Hon'ble High Court Division of the Supreme Court of 
Bangladesh sanc�oned the approval of the above Scheme of Amalgama�on by an order dated 24 October 2021. ECBL 
cement plant is situated at East Mukterpur, Munshiganj, Bangladesh with annual produc�on capacity of 660,000 MT 
cement. EPCL Power plant is situated at East Mukterpur, Munshiganj, Bangladesh. The Company went into produc�on 
from June 2005 with produc�on capacity of 10 MW. 
     
The registered office of the Company is situated in  Tatki, P.O.: Jatramora, Union: Tarabaw, P.S.: Rupganj, Narayanganj. The 
address of the opera�onal headquarters is at Symphony, Plot: SE (F) 9, Road 142, South Avenue Gulshan 1 Dhaka. Its shares 
are listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chi�agong Stock Exchange Limited.
     
The number of employees at the year end was 339 (2022: 343).

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng 
Standards (IFRSs), applicable sec�ons of the Companies Act 1994 and the Securi�es and Exchange Rules 2020. The �tle 
and format of these financial statements follow the requirements of IFRS which are to some extent different to the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 1994. However, such differences are not considered material.

The board of directors of the company has authorised these financial statements for issue on 06 March 2024.

"These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on, except the followings :
           1. Inventories at lower of cost and net realizable value
           2. Lease obliga�ons at present value of minimum lease payments
           3. Accounts receivable at net of provision for doub�ul debts
           4. Loans and borrowings at amor�zed cost"

The principal ac�vi�es of the Company throughout the year con�nued to be manufacturing and marke�ng of gray cement 
under two brands namely, Ruby and Scan Cement.

1. Company and its ac�vi�es 
      1.1. Company profile

2. Basis of prepara�on
      2.1. Statement of compliance

      2.2. Date of approval

      2.3. Basis of measurement

      1.2 Nature of business



Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT), which is both func�onal and presenta�onal currency of 
the Company

The Company has adequate resources to con�nue its opera�on for foreseeable future and hence, the financial statements 
have been prepared on going concern basis. As per management's assessment there are no materials uncertain�es related 
to events or condi�ons which may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern.

As fair value is a market based measurement, when measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses 
market observable data as far as possible though en�ty's inten�on to hold an asset or to se�le or otherwise fulfill a liability is 
not relevant while measuring fair value. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on 
inputs used in the valua�on technique as follows:
      
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets and liabili�es.     
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).      
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not  based on observable market data (unobservable input). 

      2.4. Func�onal and presenta�onal currency

      2.5. Going concern 

      2.6. Fair value

The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, es�mates and 
assump�ons that affect the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and 
expenses. Es�mates and assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis.      

The es�mates and underlying assump�ons are based on past experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of 
assets and liabili�es that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these es�mates. 

Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are recognized in the period in which the es�mate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In par�cular, informa�on about significant areas of es�ma�on and judgments in applying accoun�ng  policies that have the 
most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial statements are described in the following notes: 

Note 4 Property, plant and equipment     
Note 4.2 Rights of Use Assets     
Note 7 Inventories     
Note 8 Provision for doub�ul debts     
Note 17 Gratuity      
Note 18 Deferred tax liability     
Note 19 Trade and other payables     
Note 30 Provision for income tax     

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar nature or func�on 
are presented separately unless they are immaterial.

A segment is a dis�nguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services within a 
par�cular economic environment. Opera�ng segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal repor�ng 
provided to the chief opera�ng decision maker. The Company regards its Board of Directors as its chief opera�ng decision 
maker, as the Board is responsible for alloca�ng resources, assesses performances, and makes strategic decision. The 
Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and selling of similar type of products and the Board monitors 
performance of the Company as a whole. However, for top line monitoring, revenue/sales quan�ty by plant is monitored. 
Hence, the Company is only repor�ng loca�on/plant wise revenue segments in Note # 24.

      2.7. Use of es�mates and judgments

      2.8. Materiality and aggrega�on

The financial repor�ng period of the Company covers one year from 01 January to 31 December and consistently applied.

      2.9. Repor�ng period 

      2.10. Segment repor�ng
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2023 2022
1 US Dollar = BDT 109.54 103.14
1 EURO = BDT 120.92 110.41
1 Aus Dollar = BDT 74.61 70.25

The following Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards (IASs) and Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRSs) as adopted 
by ICAB are applicable for the financial statements for the year under review:      

IAS 1 Presenta�on of financial statements      
IAS 2 Inventories      
IAS 7 Statement of cash flows      
IAS 8 Accoun�ng policies, changes in accoun�ng es�mates and errors      
IAS 10 Events a�er the repor�ng period      
IAS 12 Income taxes      
IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment      
IAS 19 Employee benefits      
IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates      
IAS 23 Borrowing  costs      
IAS 24 Related party disclosures
IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presenta�on      
IAS 33 Earnings per share      
IAS 36 Impairment of assets      
IAS 37 Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets        
IAS 38 Intangible assets      
IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures      
IFRS 8 Segment repor�ng      
IFRS 9 Financial instruments      
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement      
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers      
IFRS 16 Leases

The accoun�ng policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. Figures rela�ng to the previous year 
included in this report have been rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to make them comparable with those of the 
current year without, however, crea�ng any impact on the value of assets and liabili�es as reported.

Foreign currency transac�ons are recorded in BDT at applicable rates of exchange ruling at the dates of transac�ons in 
accordance with IAS-21 "The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates." Exchange rate difference at the statement of 
financial posi�on date are charged/credited to statement of profit or loss account.     
 
      
The rate of relevant foreign exchange at year-end: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one en�ty and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another en�ty.

The Company ini�ally recognizes receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated.  All other financial assets are 
recognized ini�ally on the date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the transac�on. 
     
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabili�es of receiving the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transac�on in which 
substan�ally all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.
    
Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and long term receivables and deposits.

      2.11 Applica�on of standards 

3. Significant accoun�ng policies

     3.1. Foreign currency transla�on

3.2. Financial instruments

     3.2.1. Financial assets 

The Company ini�ally recognizes debt securi�es issued and subordinated liabili�es on the date that they are originated. All 
other financial liabili�es are recognized ini�ally on the transac�on date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga�ons are discharged, cancelled or expired.  

Financial liabili�es include loans and borrowings, accounts payable and other  payables.

     3.2.2. Financial liabili�es
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2023 2022
Buildings 3% - 5% 3% - 5%
Plant and machinery 5% - 10% 5% - 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20% 10% - 20%
Transport and vehicles 10% - 20% 10% - 20%

Category of assets

Tangible fixed assets are accounted for according to IAS-16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" at historical cost or revalua�on 
less accumulated deprecia�on and the capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is 
directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the items. Maintenance, renewals and be�erments that enhance the economic 
useful life of the property, plant and equipment or that improve the capacity, quality or reduce substan�ally the opera�ng 
cost or administra�on expenses are capitalized by adding it to the related property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1994, adjustment is made to the original 
cost of fixed assets acquired through foreign currency loan at the end of each financial year by any change in liability arising 
out of expressing the outstanding foreign loan at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of balance sheet.

Deprecia�on is charged on straight-line method consistent with the Company's deprecia�on policy. Land is not depreciated. 
Deprecia�on on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts over their 
es�mated useful lives. In respect of acquisi�on of fixed assets, deprecia�on is charged when assets is available for use and no 
deprecia�on is charged at the date of de-recogni�on or the assets is fully depreciated.     

The rates of deprecia�on for the current and compara�ve years are as follows:

Intangible fixed assets are accounted for according to IAS-38 "Intangible Assets." Intangible assets acquired separately are 
measured on ini�al recogni�on at cost. Following ini�al recogni�on, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amor�za�on and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized 
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the income statement in the year in which the 
expenditure is incurred.      
      
Intangible assets include acquired computer so�ware capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to 
use the specific so�ware. These costs are amor�zed over their es�mated useful lives.

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accoun�ng. It introduces significant changes to the 
lessee accoun�ng by removing the dis�nc�on between opera�ng and finance leases and requiring the recogni�on of a 
right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of 
low value assets. In contrast to lessee accoun�ng, the requirements for lessor accoun�ng have remained largely unchanged. 
Details of these new requirements are described in notes to the financial statements.

3.3. Property, plant and equipment 
     3.3.1. Recogni�on and measurement

     3.3.2. Subsequent costs 

     3.3.3. Deprecia�on 

3.4. Intangible assets

3.5 Leases

Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value in accordance with IAS-2 "Inventories." The cost of 
inventories includes expenditure incurred for acquiring the inventories, produc�on or conversion costs and other costs in 
bringing them to their exis�ng loca�on and condi�on. Net realizable value is the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business less the es�mated cost of comple�on and selling expenses.  

Inventories consist of raw materials, finished goods, packing materials and stores and spares.     
  
 Category of inventory   Basis of valua�on   
 Raw and packing materials  : At weighted average cost   
 Finished goods    : At cost   
 Stores, accessories and spares : At weighted average cost   
 Goods-in-transit   : At cost incurred �ll the balance sheet date

3.6 Inventories
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The Company reviews the carrying values of tangible and intangible assets for any possible impairment at each date of 
statement of financial posi�on. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. In assessing the recoverable amount, the es�mated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value at appropriate discount rates. 

Trade and other receivables consists of unpaid bills receivable from customers carried at their original invoice amount, stated 
net of provision for doub�ul debts. The Company ini�ally recognizes trade and other receivables at nominal value which is 
the fair value of the considera�on given in return. A�er ini�al recogni�on these are carried at nominal value less impairment 
losses due to uncollec�bility of any amount so recognized. To calculate provision for impairment on receivables, the Company 
is following 'Simplified Approach' as allowed under IFRS 9: Financial Instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank deposits and other short term highly liquid investments with original 
maturi�es of three months or less and bank overdra�s which were held and available for use by the company without any 
restric�on, and there was insignificant risk of changes in value of these current assets.

Borrowings are classified into both current and non-current liabili�es. In compliance with the requirements of IAS-23 
"Borrowing Cost," borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substan�al period of �me to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the 
respec�ve assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that an en�ty incurs in connec�on with the borrowing of funds.

Liabili�es are broadly classified into current and non-current.

The Company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obliga�ons arising from past events are certain and the 
se�lement of which is expected to result in an ou�low from the company of resources embodying economic benefits. 
Liabili�es are recorded at the amount payable for se�lement in respect of goods and services received by the Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obliga�on as a result of a past event and it is probable that an 
ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on, and a reliable es�mate can be 
made of the amount of the obliga�on. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best es�mate. If a transfer of economic benefit is no longer probable the provision should be reversed. Where the effect of 
the �me value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure required to se�le the 
obliga�on.
      
Accruals      
Accruals are liabili�es to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been paid, invoiced or 
formally agreed with the supplier, including amount due to employees.  
     
Con�ngent liabili�es      
A con�ngent liability arises when a past event may lead to an en�ty having a liability in the future but the financial impact of 
the event will only be confirmed by the outcome of some future event not wholly within the en�ty's control. A con�ngent 
liability should be disclosed in the financial statements unless the possible ou�low of resources is thought to be remote. 
     
Con�ngent assets      
A con�ngent asset is a poten�al asset that arises from past events but whose existence can only be confirmed by the 
outcome of future events not wholly within an en�ty's control. A con�ngent asset should be disclosed in the financial 
statements only when the expected inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.7 Impairment 

3.8 Trade and other receivables

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

3.10  Borrowings

3.11  Liabili�es

  3.11.1. Trade and other payables

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income (profit and loss statement) in accordance with IAS-12 "Income taxes."

3.12  Income tax

  3.11.2. Provision, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets
 Provisions 
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33..1122..11.. CCuurrrreenntt  ttaaxx

33..1122..22..

33..1133 WWoorrkkeerrss''  pprrooffiitt  ppaarrttiicciippaattiioonn  ffuunndd

33..1144..33.. GGrroouupp  iinnssuurraannccee  bbeenneeffiitt

33..1155 RReevveennuuee  rreeccooggnniittiioonn  ((IIFFRRSS  1155  RReevveennuuee  ffrroomm  CCoonnttrraaccttss  wwiitthh  CCuussttoommeerrss))

33..1155..11..

DDeeffeerrrreedd  ttaaxx

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

The Company qualifies as a “Publicly Traded Company” as defined in income tax laws. The applicable tax rate for the Compa-
ny is 20% and hence provision for taxa�on has been made on this basis which is in compliant with the Finance Act 2023 and 
newly enacted Income Tax Act 2023. 

The Company has provided for WPPF in terms of sec�on 234(1)(b) of Bangladesh Labor (Amendment) Act 2013, 5% of the net 
profit of each year, not later than nine (9) months from the close of that period, is required to be transferred to the Fund, the 
propor�on of the payment to the Par�cipa�on Fund and the Welfare Fund being 80:10. The remaining 10% of the amount of net 
profit shall be paid by the Company to the Workers' Welfare Founda�on Fund, as formed under Bangladesh Workers' Welfare 
Founda�on Act,

The permanent employees of the company are covered under a group term insurance scheme, premium for which is being 
charged to profit or loss statement.

The Company recognises as revenue the amount that reflects the considera�on to which the Company expects to be 
en�tled in exchange for goods or services when (or as) it transfers control to the customer. To achieve that core principle, 
the Company follows the five-step model as below:

  Iden�fy the contract with a customer
  Iden�fy the performance obliga�ons in the contract
  Determine the transac�on price
  Allocate the transac�on price to the performance obliga�ons in the contract and
  Recognise revenue when (or as) the en�ty sa�sfies a performance obliga�on

Revenue is recognised for the contracts to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumula-
�ve revenue recognised will not occur. As a consequence, for those contracts for which the company is unable to make a 
reasonable es�mate of return, revenue is expected to be recognised sooner than when the return period lapses or a reason-
able es�mate can be made.

Based on the Company’s assessment, the �ming of revenue recogni�on from sale of goods are broadly similar. Therefore, 
the Company does not expect the applica�on of IFRS 15 to result in significant differences in the �ming of revenue recogni-
�on for these sales.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabili�es for financial repor�ng purposes and amounts used for taxa�on purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted 
or substan�vely enacted by the repor�ng date. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax liabili�es and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable en�ty. 
The deferred tax asset/income or liability/expense does not create a legal obliga�on to, or recoverability from, the income tax 
authority.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
deduc�ble temporary difference can be u�lized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each repor�ng date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

33..1144 EEmmppllooyyeeee  bbeenneeffiitt  

The Company maintains a defined contribu�on plan (approved provident fund) and a re�rement benefit obliga�ons 
(approved gratuity fund) for its eligible permanent employees.

33..1144..11.. DDeeffiinneedd  ccoonnttrriibbuuttiioonn  ppllaann  ((pprroovviiddeenntt  ffuunndd))

Defined contribu�on plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the Company  provides benefits for all of its permanent 
employees. The recognized Employees' Provident Fund is being considered as defined contribu�on plan as it meets the 
recogni�on criteria specified for this purpose. All permanent employees contribute 10% of their basic salary to the provident fund 
and the Company also makes equal contribu�on. This fund is recognized by the Na�onal Board of Revenue (NBR).

The Company recognizes contribu�on to defined contribu�on plan as an expense when an employee has rendered required 
services. The legal and construc�ve obliga�on is limited to the amount it agrees to contribute to the fund. Obliga�ons are created 
when they are due.

33..1144..22.. DDeeffiinneedd  bbeenneeffiitt  ppllaann  ((GGrraattuuiittyy))

The Company maintains a recognized gratuity scheme for all its eligible permanent employees. As per terms of contract the 
gratuity obliga�on, for employees who joined before amalgama�on in their former Chi�agong Cement Clinker Grinding 
Company Ltd, is last two months' basic salary or wages drawn and for employees who joined a�er amalgama�on, one and 
half month's basic salary applicable at the �me of their respec�ve cessa�on of employment for each completed year of 
service.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 102

33..1166 FFiinnaannccee  eexxppeennsseess

33..1177 AAddvveerrttiissiinngg  aanndd  pprroommoottiioonnaall  eexxppeennsseess

33..1188 RReesseeaarrcchh,,  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  aanndd  eexxppeerriimmeenntt  ccoossttss

33..1199 SSttoocckkss  wwrriittee  ooffff//ddoowwnn

33..2200 RReeppaaiirr,,  uuppkkeeeepp  aanndd  mmaaiinntteennaannccee  cchhaarrggeess

33..2211 BBaassiiss  ooff  aallllooccaattiioonn  ooff  ddeepprreecciiaattiioonn  

Basis alloca�on of deprecia�on in different overheads are as follows:
Manufacturing, labor and overhead 75%
Warehousing, distribu�on and selling expenses                        15%
Administra�ve expenses 10%

33..2222 EEaarrnniinnggss  ppeerr  sshhaarree  

33..2233 SSttaatteemmeenntt  ooff  ccaasshh  fflloowwss  

33..2244 EEvveennttss  aafftteerr  tthhee  rreeppoorrttiinngg  ppeerriioodd

33..2255 OOppeerraattiinngg  eennvviirroonnmmeenntt

33..2266 SSttaannddaarrdd  iissssuueedd  bbuutt  nnoott  yyeett  eeffffeeccttiivvee

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effec�ve for annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 which
have been duly adopted. However, none o�hese new and/or amended standards have any significan�mpact on the Company's
financial statements.

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effec�ve for annual periods beginning a�er 31 December
2023 and earlier applica�on is permi�ed. However, the Company has not yet assessed possible impact o�hese new and/or
amended standards on the Company's financial statements.

The Company's opera�ng environment during the year ended 2023 were impacted by a number of major global geo-poli�cal
events and conflict, vola�le fuel and commodity prices, unpredictable foreign exchange and interest rate etc. Most o�hese
events also had significan�mpact on the local economic environment affec�ng the Company's opera�ons. From �me to �me,
the Government of Bangladesh has issued various direc�ves to manage impacts from these events which the Company has
followed. Management on regular basis review and monitor the global and country specific macro-economic situa�on and factor
these issues into the decision making process.

Events a�er the repor�ng period that provide addi�onal informa�on abou�he company's posi�on a�he balance sheet date
are reflected in the financial statements. Material events a�er the balance sheet date that are not adjus�ng events are
disclosed in the note 48.

These are usually charged as revenue charges.

The Company presented diluted (when dilu�on is applicable) earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares according to
IAS-33 "Earning Per Share."   

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders o�he Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares during the period, adjusted for the effect of change in number of shares for bonus issue,
share split and reverse split.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjus�ng the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares. However, dilu�on of EPS is not applicable
for these financial statements as there was no dilu�ve poten�al ordinary shares during the relevant periods.

Statement of Cash Flows (Cash Flow Statement) is prepared under direct method in accordance with IAS-7 "Statement of Cash
Flows" as required by the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Rules 2020.

I�ncludes the cost of wri�ng off or wri�ng down the value of redundant or damaged or obsolete stocks, which are dumped
and/or old stock.

These are usually absorbed as revenue charges as and when incurred, in line with IAS 38: Intangible Assets.

All costs associated with adver�sing and promo�onal ac�vi�es are charged out in the year it is incurred.

Finance expenses comprise bank interest and other charges. All finance expenses are recognized in the profit and loss
statement along with interest income from fixed deposit and from saving or current account.

Notes to financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000

Cost
At 01 January 2022 3,965,524 6,922,810 205,484 105,289 11,199,107
Addi�ons 34,295 124,298 22,912 17,248 198,753
Disposal (17,530) (17,027) (11,857) (5,333) (51,747)
Balance at 31 December 2022 3,982,289 7 ,030,081 216 ,539 117 ,203 11,346 ,112

Deprecia�on
At 01 January 2022 1,285,944 4,413,947 174,812 59,170                5,933,873
Deprecia�on expense 103,282 312,126 11,844 12,127 439,380
Disposal (8,189) (17,023) (10,125) (4,637) (39,974)
Balance at 31 December 2022 1,381,037     4,709,051       176 ,531     66 ,660 6 ,333,278       

Net book value at 31 December 2022 2,601,252     2,321,030       40,008       50,544           5,012,834       

Cost
At 01 January 2023 3,982,289          7,030,081            216,539          117,203              11,346,112          
Addi�ons 15,588                162,831                22,002            12,453                 212,874                
Disposal (3,065) (5,157)                   (19,329)           (13,023) (40,574)                 
Balance at 31 December 2023 3,994,812 7 ,187 ,755       219,212     116 ,633 11,518,412     

Deprecia�on
At 01 January 2023 1,381,037          4,709,051            176,531          66,660                 6,333,278             
Deprecia�on expense 102,169 283,552                12,597            13,883                 412,201                
Disposal (1,515) (5,157)                   (19,298)           (11,026)               (36,996)                 
Balance at 31 December 2023 1,481,691     4,987 ,446       169,829     69,517           6 ,708,483       

Net book value at 31 December 2023 2,513,121     2,200,309       49,382       47 ,116           4,809,929       

4.1 Break-up of addi�on to property, plant and equipment:

Land and building 
   Non-factory building 15,588 34,295                  

15,588 34,295 

Plant and machinery 
   Equipment apparatus and accessories 57,030 88,226 

   Electrical installa�on 95,814 34,809 

   Tools and equipment 9,987 1,263 
162,831 124,298          

Furniture and equipment
  Furniture and fixture 2,807 14,553                  

  Sundry assets - 381                        

  Computer 6,185 3,138                     

  Office equipment 13,010 4,840 
22,002 22,912 

Transport And Vehicles
  Pick up van/vehicle 12,453 17,248                  

12,453 17 ,248            

212,874 198,753 
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4.2 Lease Assets-RoU

Par�culars
RoU

Land and
Buildings

RoU
Transport and 

vehicles
Total

BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000
Cost

047,9842202 yraunaJ 10 tA          124,860               614,600                
241,502 snoitiddA          76,026                 281,168                
)711,01(lasopsiD           -                       (10,117)                

667,4862202 rebmeceD 13 ta ecnalaB          200,886              885,651                

Amor�za�on
208,3112202 yraunaJ 10 tA          101,251               215,053                
883,55esnepxe noitazitromA            36,156                 91,544                  
)351,1(lasopsiD (1,135)                             
730,8612202 rebmeceD 13 ta ecnalaB          137,407              305,445                

Net book value at 31 December 2022 516,728         63,479                580,207               

Cost
667,4863202 yraunaJ 10 tA          200,886               885,652                
251,24 snoitiddA 251,24                            

(12,150)lasopsiD               (12,150)                 
819,6273202 rebmeceD 13 ta ecnalaB          188,736              915,654                

Amor�za�on
730,8613202 yraunaJ 10 tA          137,407               305,445                
932,55esnepxe noitazitromA            37,721                 92,960                  

-lasopsiD                   -                       -                         
672,3223202 rebmeceD 13 ta ecnalaB          175,128              398,404                

Net book value at 31 December 2023 503,642         13,608                517,250               

4.3 Alloca�on of deprecia�on & amor�za�on expense:

178,873)4.52 eton( sdaehrevo dna robal ,gnirutcafunaM               398,193                
477,57)72 eton( sesnepxe gnilles dna noitubirtsid ,gnisuoheraW                 79,639                  
615,05)82 eton( esnepxe evitartsinimdA                 53,092                  

505,161 530,924

         -                      
4.4 Details of disposal of property, plant and equipment

Par�cularsCost
Accumulated
Deprecia�on

Book
Value

Sale
Proceeds

Mode of 
disposal

Par�culars of
 purchaser

2023

Land and building 3,065        1,515             1,550               -                   

Plant and machinery 5,157        5,157             0                      230                 

Furniture and equipments 19,329      19,298           31                    401                  

Transport and vehicles 13,023      11,026           1,997               3,000
40,574Total 2023       36,996           3,578              3,631              

202251,747       39,974           11,772            4045

Figures in Thousand BDT

Company policy/
tender  

Company policy/
Re�rement

Company policy/
tender  
Company policy/
tender  

Company policy/
tender  

Third par�es

Employee

Third par�es

Employee/
third par�es

31.12.2023
BDT '000

31.12.2022
BDT '000
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31.12.2023

5 Capital works-in-progress

Par�culars
Intangible

Assets
Land and
Buildings

Plant and 
Machinery

Furniture and 
Equipment

Total

BDT '000BDT '000BDT '000BDT '000BDT '000

421,132202 yraunaJ 1 tA           38,910            124,498          -                
-noitiddA                 44,519           157,841          -                

)421,13(raey eht gnirud dezilatipaC         (34,295)           (124,298)         -               
At 31 December 2022 -                49,134           158,041          -                

-3202 yraunaJ 1 tA                 49,134           158,041          -                
429noitiddA                27,345           86,594            17,348                

)429(raey eht gnirud dezilatipaC               (10,431)          (109,068)        (17,348)               
At 31 December 2023 -                66,048           135,567          -

                      194,532
                      202,360

                      (189,717)
                      207,175

                      207,175
                132,211

              (137,771)
                      201,615               

So�wareTotal
BDT '000BDT '000

6 Intangible assets

Cost
At 01 January 2022 90,885                90,885                 
Addi�on 11,959                11,959                 
Balance at 31 December 2022 102,844             102,844               

Amor�za�on
806,112202 yraunaJ 10 oT                 11,608                  
202,31raey eht rof egrahC                 13,202                  

Total to 31 December 2022 24,809                24,809                  

At 31 December 2022 78,035                78,035                 

Cost
448,2013202 yraunaJ 10 tA               102,844                
867,1 noitiddA                   1,768                    

Balance at 31 December 2023 104,612             104,612                

Amor�za�on
908,423202 yraunaJ 10 oT                 24,809                  
832,31raey eht rof egrahC                 13,238                  

Total to 31 December 2023 38,047                38,047                  

At 31 December 2023 66,565                66,565                 

7 Inventories 

568,975slairetam waR               1,027,935             
296,641 sdoog dehsiniF               199,733                
615,361slairetam gnikcaP               148,948                
995,417seraps dna serotS               642,034                

1,604,671          2,018,650             
)687,31(seraps dna serots gnivom wols rof noisivorP               (13,686)                 

1,590,884          2,004,964            

BDT '000
31.12.2022
BDT '000
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31.12.2023 31.12.2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

8 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Considered good 400,619                       471,112                
Considered doub�ul 80,556                         81,242                   

481,176                       552,354                
Other receivables
Third party 45,171                         17,178                   
Inter-company 3,467                           13,442                   

48,637                         30,620                   
Provision for doub�ul debts (80,556)                        (81,242)                 

449,257                       501,732                

Receivable covered under security  462,034                       474,172                
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months. 107,364                       88,625                   

9 Advances, deposits and prepayments

Advance paid to suppliers and employees 50,453                         16,580                   
Le�er of Credit (LC) margin 387,357                       -                         
Security and other deposits 225,321                       134,024                
Prepayments 7,777                           14,136                   

670,908                       164,739                

9.1 99,090                         169,680                

9.2 184                               107                        

9.3 1,000                           579                         

9.4 Advance outstanding for a period exceeding six months 40,000                         -                         

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 48                                 45                          
Cash at bank in current accounts 14,319                         10,300                   
Short term bank deposits (STD) 264,368                       202,807                
Fixed deposits receipts (FDR) 4,016,958                   16,958                   

4,295,692                   230,109                

10.1 Bank Overdra�
101,039                       -                         

Closing cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in cash flow statement 4,194,654                   230,109                

Trade and other receivables were stated at their nominal value. Adequate provisions has been made for all iden�fiable doub�ul receivables. 

Tradeandotherreceivableswereaccruedintheordinarycourseo�usinessandnoamountwasduebytheDirectors(includingManaging
Director), managers and other officers of the company and any of them severally or jointly with any other person.

These include aggregate amount due by, execu�ves, managers, officers and staffs

FDR includes an amount of BDT 16,958 thousand (2022: 16,958 thousand) held under lien in favour of Customs Authority. 

company at the end of any month during the year

Amount realized/adjusted during the year from the balance sheet date

The maximum aggregated amount due by execu�ves, managers, officers and staffs of the 

In current account with Standard Chartered Bank
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100,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each 1,000,000                   1,000,000             

11.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

36,358,870 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each fully paid up 363,588                       363,588                
20,144,710 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each issued as fully paid-up bonus shares 201,448                       201,448                

565,036                       565,036                

11.3 Percentage and value of shareholdings

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Foreign shareholders
Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V. 39.81% 39.81% 224,930                       224,930                
Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH 20.86% 20.86% 117,844                       117,844                

60.67% 60.67% 342,774                       342,774                

Bangladeshi shareholders
General public 13.07% 12.50% 73,870                         70,678                   
Company's employees 0.18% 0.19% 1,031                           1,051                     
Investment Corpora�on of Bangladesh (ICB) 12.49% 12.49% 70,581                         70,581                   
Other financial ins�tu�ons 13.59% 14.15% 76,780                         79,952                   

39.33% 39.33% 222,262                       222,262                
100.00% 100.00% 565,036                       565,036                

11.4 Classifica�on of shareholders by holding 

Shareholding range
2023 2022

Less than 5000 shares 9,917                           8,995                     
5001 to 50,000 shares 226                               204                        
50,001 to 200,000 shares 38                                 48                          
200,001 to 500,000 shares 8                                   7                             
500,001 to 10,000,000 shares 6                                   6                             
Over 10,000,000 shares 2                                   2                             

                           9,262                     

11.5 Op�on on un-issued shares

There is no op�on on un-issued share capital

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

Balance as at 1 January 141,607                       141,607                
Balance as at 31 December 141,607                       141,607                

Thetotalauthorizednumberofordinarysharesis100millionwithafacevalueofBDT10pershare(2021:BDT10pershare).Thefacevalue
ofshareswerechangedtoBDT10fromBDT100asperthedecisiontakenin7thExtra-OrdinaryGeneralMee�ng(EGM),heldon27
November2011,tocomplywiththeBangladeshSecuri�esandExchangeCommissionorderno.SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/109dated15
September 2011.

Number of shareholders

Suppliers'credit-blockedBDT2,565thousandrepresentsthevalueofmechanicalsparesetc.suppliedbythecontractorM/sFive'sCoil
Bebcock,FranceagainstFrenchgrantasreplacementofdamagescausedtotheconveyorbeltbeingconstructedbyit.Thevalueofsupplies
atFF499,578wasconvertedatrulingexchangerateason30June1988.BCIChadclaimedtheamountanddebentureswereissued
towards repayment of the amount (note 14.1).

Percentage (%)

11 Share capital

12 Reserve

13 Suppliers' credit blocked

10,197

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

11.1 Authorized share capital
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31.12.2023 31.12.2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

14 Quasi equity loan

Fixed assets revalua�on surplus 104,122 104,122                
Government equity contribu�on   20,000 20,000                   

124,122                       124,122                
Foreign currency devalua�on (1,486)                          (1,486)                   

122,636                       122,636                

14.1

Suppliers' credit (note 13) 2,565 
Quasi equity loan (note 14) 122,636 
ADP interest-excess provision 12,699 

137,900              

15 Borrowings- Term loan-non-current por�on

Ci�bank N.A -                               173,200                
-                               173,200                

15.1 Borrowings- Term loan-current por�on

Ci�bank N.A -                                313,200                
Short term UPAS loan 3,992,085                   313,561                

3,992,085                   626,761                
Ci�bank NA Term loan : 

16 Finance Lease liability

Long-term liabili�es from finance lease-(non-current por�on) 170,240                       193,934                
Long-term liabili�es from finance lease (current Por�on) 53,268                         85,749                   

223,508                       279,683                
Maturity analysis of Lease liabili�es

No later than one month 28,588                         28,677                   
Later than one month and not later than three months 9,282                           10,250                   
Later than three months and not later than one year 15,397                         46,821                   
Later than one year and not later than five years 89,364                         193,934                
More than five years 80,876                         -                         
Total 223,508                       279,683                

BDT. 137,900 thousand to BCIC in repayment of the following dues:

HeidelbergCementBangladeshLimitedobtained5yearsTermLoanofBDT1,566millionfromCi�bankN.A.fortheacquisi�onofEmirates
CementBangladeshLimitedandEmiratesPowerCompanyLimitedin2019.On22ndMarch2023thecompanypaiden�reloanbalanceof
BDT 486,400 thousand.

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

At the �me of transfer of 51% shares, held by BCIC, to BDT Oil Refinery Limited during June 1993, the company issued 13.5% Debenture for

T h e t r u s t d e e d w a s r e g i s t e r e d o n 2 4 J u n e 1 9 9 3 b u � h e c o n c e r n e d p r o p e r -
�eshavenotbeenmortgagedandchargedhavenotbeencreated thenasperrequirementofsec�ons115ofCompaniesAct1913.The-
minorityshareholders(40%)filedacasewithsub-judgecourt,Dhaka agains�ssueofdebentures.Thejudgmentwasinfavourofmi-
norityshareholders,whichmeanstha�heen�reliabilitywillnotbepayable toBCIC.TheGovernmentappealedtohighcourtandthe-
judgmentwasagaininfavourofminorityshareholders.Thejudgmentandorder o�heHighCourtDivisionwaschallengedbytheGov-
ernmentbeforeAppellateDivisiono�heSupremeCourtandtheAppellateDivision videitsjudgmentandorderdated10.05.2007al-
lowedtheappealandsetasidethejudgmentandordero�heHighCourtDivisiondated 07.12.1999.Subsequently,theGovernmen-
thasfiledpendingMoneySuitNo.32of2009intheCourtofJointDistrictJudge,4thCourt, Dhaka against the company claiming BDT. 
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17 Re�rement benefit obliga�ons (gratuity)

2023 2022
7% 7%
7% 7%
7% 7%

31.12.2023 31.12.2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

Opening balance 298,742                       515,498                
Provision/ (reversal) made during the year (191,657)                     (214,755)               
Net defined benefit gratuity -                                (2,002)                   
Closing balance 107,084                       298,742                

- -                         
18.1 Deferred tax by type of temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax (assets) or liabili�es 

Property, plant and equipment 202,423 404,444                
Provision for lease liability (67,841)                        (78,087)                 
Provision for inventories (11,387)                        (11,367)                 
Provision for doub�ul debts (16,111)                        (16,248)                 

107,084                       298,742                

18.2 Movement in deferred tax balance

Net balance at Recognized in Net balance at
1st Jan 2023 Profit or loss 31st Dec 2023

Property, plant and equipment 336,130             (133,707)                     202,423                
Provision for Lease Liability (78,087)              10,246                         (67,841)                 
Provision for Inventories (11,367) )02(                                              (11,387)                 
Provision for doub�ul debts (16,248) 731                                             (16,111)                 
Meghna energy assets revalua�on 68,314               (68,314)                        -                         
Deferred Tax Liability 298,742             (191,657)                     107,084                

The Company's policy related to employees gratuity is stated in note - 3.14.2. In 2017, the Company has established a separate trus�or
management of gratuity obliga�on. As per the actuary report of 2021 the Company has contributed 13.3% (2018: 11.50%) o�asic salary as
its contribu�on to gratuity fund. The company made latest actuarial valua�on of fund as at 31st December 2023.  

Principal actuarial assump�on
Discount rate
Expected return of fund assets
Rate of expected increase in salaries

18 Deferred tax liability



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 110

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023 31.12.2023 31.12.2022

BDT '000 BDT '000
19  Trade and other payables

Trade payables (*) 1,094,153          1,434,828             
Creditors for other finance (note 19.1) 198,044              121,380                
Creditors for revenue expenses (note 19.2) 2,293,691          1,732,995             
Interest accrued 299,700              299,700                

3,885,588          3,588,903             

19.1 Creditors for other finance

24,580                24,180                   
24,430                28,686                   
36,213                45,173                   
(8,103)                 2,935                     
14,808                10,548                   
23,033                8,892                     
83,083                967                        

198,044              121,380                

19.2 Creditors for revenue expenses

Revenue charges 795,241              649,801                
Employees remunera�on 68,200                50,679                   
Group License fee 131,805              57,273                   
Technical know-how fee (Note 19.3) 1,298,444          975,241                

2,293,691          1,732,995             

19.3

20     Provision for workers' profit par�cipa�on fund

Opening balance 110,336              32,282                   
Addi�on during the year 56,504                146,909 
Paid to shareholders (135,180)            (68,856) 
Fund transfer to CMSF (31,660)               - 

Closing balance -                      110,336                

Opening balance 59,570                (11,592)                 
Addi�on during the year:

              511,815                  368,000 

         7,047 
       19,895 26,942                -                         

538,757              368,000                
Paid during the year (377,489)            (296,838)               
Closing balance 220,838              59,570                  

The Technical Know-How and Technological Transfer Agreements are replaced with effec�rom January 1, 2022 by two new
agreements, namely the "General Services Agreement" with Heidelberg Material Asia Pte Ltd. and the "Master License
Agreement" with Heidelberg Material AG. According to the replaced agreements, @ 0.85% (year 2022 @ 0.78%) of HCBL's net
sales less the costs of raw materials, addi�ves, and clinker would be used as licensing fees, and @ 1.8% of HCBL's net sales will
be used as service fees.

Provision for liabili�es and charges includes provision for Worker’s Profit Par�cipa�on Fund (WPPF) of BDT 41,401 thousand.
Year 2022 was BDT nill due to PBT loss. This represents 5% of net profit before charging WPPF (note 3.13).

Current year provision

Prior year tax assets*

In compliance with Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Direc�ves No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03, there
is a separate bank accoun�or the payment of dividend for each year. Detailed informa�on of shareholders rela�ng to
unclaimed dividend is properly maintained. Up to 31st December 2023 the company transfered total BDT 220,800 thousand,
out of this during year 2023 have transfered BDT 31,660 thousand to CMSF.

*During the year 2023, Income Year 2018 final assessment has been completed with tax refund of BDT 19,895 thousand, and this
tax assets will be adjusted with future tax liability and hence shown separately in balance sheet. 

Prior year expenses
Prior year liability:

* BDT 63,810 thousands provided against import and supplementary du�es covered by bank guarantees.

21 Unclaimed dividend

22 Current income tax liability

Security deposits
VAT deduc�on at source
Tax deduc�on at source
Receivable form employees provident fund
Inter company payables
Payable for capital expenditure
Others



31.12.2023 31.12.2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

23 Con�ngent assets, liabili�es and commitments
Con�ngent assets

Con�ngent liabili�es and commitments

i)

ii)

iii) Guarantees:

16,958                16,958                   

186,802              115,965                

iv) Financial commitments:
12,615,467        3,869,590             

v) 20,375                79,056                   
vi) Capital expenditure authorized and commi�ed for 172,956              149,369                

13,012,558        2,445,740             

In accordance with the resolu�on passed by the BCIC Board of Directors in its mee�ng held on 08.09.1986, land property
owned by the Company measuring 48.09 decimal was transferred to BCIC at a lump sum price of BDT 10,000 thousand. BCIC
did not make any payment. The Company raised claim for BDT 35,500 thousand from BCIC including BDT 25,500 thousand as
interest. 

Law suits are filed both agains�he Company and by the Company, lying at different stages of appeal at different
courts, decisions of which are s�ll pending. The Company has assessed the possible outcomes o�he cases agains�t
and is o�he opinion tha�hese might not go agains�he company. Par�al provisions agains�he eligible law suits have
already been taken under note 19.2 'Revenue charges'. 

Capital expenditure authorized but not contracted for

Guarantees issued by the Company's banker with 100% margin form of FDR for 
import duty and supplementary duty 
Guarantees issued by the Company's banker for security deposits and others

According to the purchase deeds, HCBL holds 14.6050 acres and 0.33 acres ofland a�he Kanchpur Plant. It was
properly mutated into a single document with the name o�he company's predecessor, Scan Cement Interna�onal, in
2000. Currently, 0.785 acres ofland fall under the proceedings o�he record division ofland bu�he management of
the  Company believes a quick resolu�on of these proceedings is in the Company's favor.

Confirmed irrevocable le�ers of credit _Note 38
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2023 2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

24 Sales
Chi�agong Dhaka Muktarpur

Domes�c 5,161,804          9,452,467             3,334,714             17,948,985          16,617,283        
Export 3,715                  3,015                     -                         6,730                     149,656              
Total Sales 5,165,519          9,455,482             3,334,714             17,955,715          16,766,939        

25 Cost of goods sold
Opening stock of raw materials  (note 25.1) 1,224,425             1,399,290           
Raw materials purchased  (note 25.1) 13,244,923          13,609,622        
Closing stock of raw materials  (note 25.1) (723,959)               (1,224,425) 
Raw materials consumed 13,745,389          13,784,488        
Manufacturing labor and overhead (note 25.4) 2,088,911             1,935,381           
Cost of produc�on 15,834,300          15,719,869        
Opening finished goods 199,733                171,771              
Closing finished goods (146,692)               (199,733)             
Cost of goods sold 15,887,341          15,691,907        

25.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening inventory:
Clinker 743,453                833,987              
Gypsum 80,542                  119,609              
Iron slag 126,312                155,701              
Limestone & other 74,028                  130,372              
Fly ash 51,642                  58,493                
Packing materials 148,448                101,129              

1,224,425            1,399,290           
Purchase:
Clinker 8,666,967             9,333,671           
Gypsum 433,324                379,715              
Iron slag 1,238,398             1,275,316           
Limestone and others 891,925                800,057              
Fly ash 1,100,244             974,973              
Packing materials 914,064                845,889              

13,244,923          13,609,622        
Raw materials available for consump�on 14,469,348          15,008,913        
Closing inventory:
Clinker (223,169)               (743,453)             
Gypsum (92,388)                 (80,542)               
Iron slag (42,773)                 (126,312)             
Limestone and other (118,603)               (74,028)               
Fly ash (84,774)                 (51,642)               
Packing materials (162,252)               (148,448)             

(723,959)              (1,224,425)         
Raw materials consumed 13,745,389          13,784,488        

25.2

Sales-net Sales-net
Qty-M.T BDT Qty-M.T BDT Qty-M.T BDT

Year 2023 28 199,733     23 146,692                 2,185 17,955,715        
Year 2022 28 171,771     28 199,733                 2,213 16,766,939        

Opening stock Closing stock

Par�culars in respect of opening stock, sales and closing stocks of finished goods (figures in thousand)

Notes to financial statements
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25.3 Analysis of raw materials consump�on (figures in thousand)

Qty-M.T BDT Qty-M.T BDT
Raw materials 
Clinker 1,305                  9,187,252             1,316 9,424,205           
Gypsum 98                        421,479                 97 418,782              
Iron slag 312                     1,321,938             313 1,304,704           
Limestone and others 174                     847,350                 205 856,402              
Fly ash 291                     1,067,111             322 981,825              
Packing materials (000 Pcs) 38,879                900,259                 37,226                  798,570              

13,745,389           13,784,488        

2023 2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

25.4 Manufacturing labor and overhead

Personnel Cost:
Salaries, wages and bonus 216,067 200,946              
Welfare and other benefits 25,319 22,666                

241,386                223,612              
Power and fuel costs 896,053                620,350              
Deprecia�on expense (note 4.3) 378,871                398,193              
Stores and spares consumed 165,300                176,023              
Cost of consumables 113,102                149,790              
Repairs and maintenance 132,837                128,035              
Insurance 13,786                  10,404                
Postage, telephone and telex 1,695                     1,749                   
Traveling and conveyance 3,967                     7,587                   
Rent, rates and taxes 29,354                  41,522                
Entertainment 10,146                  9,346                   
Security guard 41,054 39,146                
KP Je�y dismantling cost - 80,752                
Uniform, liveries and other administra�ve expenses 61,361                  48,871                

2,088,911            1,935,381           

26 Other opera�ng income & Expenses
Berth hire charge 3,264                     409                      
Scrap sales and sundry recoveries 10,910                  13,201                
Lease Cancela�on -                         (377) 
Foreign exchange losses (2,195)                   (8,209) 
Profit/ (Loss) on sale of tangible assets 1,261                     (8,820) 

13,239                  (3,797)                 

2023 2022
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2023 2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

27 Warehousing, distribu�on and selling expenses
Personnel Cost:
Salaries, wages and bonus 94,967               82,019               
Welfare and benefits 10,733               9,651                  

105,700             91,670               
Deprecia�on expense (note 4.3) 75,774               79,639               
Freight, loading, unloading and others 72,215               68,331               
Adver�sement expnses 141,718             133,653             
Business promo�on expenses 64,257               51,335               
Traveling and conveyance 11,328               13,822               
Vehicle running expense 12,203               9,995                  
Rent, rates and taxes 25,382               23,203               
Postage, telephone and telex 1,917                  1,970                  
Bad debt wri�en-off 685                     228                     
Bad debt provision released (685)                    (228) 
Office supplies and Prin�ng & sta�onary 1,295                  442 
Repairs and maintenance 421                     593                     
Entertainment & others 455                     1,117                  

512,666             475,770             

28 Administra�ve expenses
Personnel Cost:
Salaries, wages and bonus 102,002             87,519               
Welfare and benefits 25,570               25,322               

127,572             112,841             
Deprecia�on expense (note 4.3) 50,516               53,092               
Deprecia�on of intangible assets (note 6) 13,238               13,202               
Rent, rates and taxes 10,509               9,731                  
Traveling and conveyance 8,278                  2,867                  
Postage, telephone and telex 1,364                  1,363                  
Annual General Mee�ng expenses 870                     750                     
Technical know-how fee (note 19.3) 323,203             301,805             
Group License fee (note19.3) 74,532               57,273               
Legal and professional charges 23,624               23,208               
Entertainment 7,561                  7,269                  
Repairs and maintenance 7,171                  5,586                  
Office supplies and Prin�ng & sta�onary 1,491                  768                     
Bank charges 5,981                  3,705                  
Electronic data processing expense 5,061                  4,689                  
Audit fee 1,250                  1,000                  

399stsoc tnemtiurceR                      55                       
Electricity 1,591                  1,453                  
Vehicle running expense 12,591               12,703               
Newspaper and periodicals 67                       59                       
Subscrip�on on others 1,220                  1,137                  
Other administra�ve expenses 3,437                  2,022                  

682,118             616,579             

29 Net finance (expenses)/ income
Interest income on bank deposits 234,834             13,360               
Other Interest income 70                       -                      
Interest expenses for Finance lease liability-RoU (17,080)              (20,687) 
Interest expenses for Ci� Bank N.A term loan (7,312)                (49,572) 
Interest expenses for Import loan and others (263,829)            (7,684) 
Income from change in discount rate (4,943)                1,123 
Net interest on defined benefit liability -                      1,846 

(58,261)              (61,614)              
Net exchange (loss)/gain (553)                    2,532                  

(58,814)              (59,082) 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 114

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 I 115

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

30 Income tax expense

Reconcilia�on of tax expense with accoun�ng profit and applicable tax rate:
2023 %    2022 % BDT '000 BDT '000

Profit /(Loss) before tax 786,615             (80,195)              
Income tax @ statutory rate  20.0%        20.0% 157,323 -                      
Inadmissible expenses & Tax paid u/s 163 45.1%      459.9% 354,492 368,000             
Current tax charges 65.1%      459.9% 511,815             368,000             

31 Earnings per share 
Profit /(Loss) a�er tax for the year 459,410             (233,441)

56,504               56,504 
Earnings per share (Basic) 8.13                    (4.13)                  

Earning per share (diluted)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the year

As per the new Income Tax ACT 2023, for cement manufacturer HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (HCBL) is to pay the
minimum tax u/s 163 subjec�o the higher of (a) a�he rate of 0.6% o�otal gross receipts u/s 163[5 Ka Sl-5], (b) tax deducted at
source for corporate sales u/s 89, tax paid a�mport stage u/s 120; tax deducted at source o�ank interes�ncome u/s 102. (c) at
the corporate tax rate is 20% on taxable income. 

The company recognized es�mated current tax expense of BDT 511,815 thousand.

No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for these years as there was no scope for dilu�on these years.

Basic earnings

Weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the year:

The calcula�on o�he basic earnings per share is made in accordance with IAS-33, dividing the profi�or the year by weighted
average number of the shares issued.

This represents earnings for the year a�ributable to the ordinary shareholders. As there was no preference dividend, minority
interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit a�er tax for the year has been considered as fully a�ributable to the ordinary
shareholders.

This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding a�he year beginning o�he year plus the number of ordinary shares 
issued during the year.

The corporate tax rate applicable for the Company is 20% for the year 2023 (2022: 20%) as a ''Publicly Traded Company''. Current 
year tax provision has been has been accounted for at BDT 528,535 (2022: BDT 368,000) thousand. 
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32 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows:

32.1 Collec�on from customers

32.2 Cash paid to suppliers

32.3 Cash paid for opera�ng expenses

33 Income tax paid 

34 Acquisi�on of non-current assets
This relates to ou�low of cash and cash equivalents for acquisi�on of non-current assets.

35 Proceed from sale of non-current assets 
2023 2022

BDT '000 BDT '000
-                        2,127                   
401                       135                      

3,000                    1,783                   
3,631                    4,045                   

37
2023 2022
HCBL HCBL

BDT '000 BDT '000

Profit/(loss) before tax 786,615               (80,195) 
Deprecia�on of property, plant and equipment 505,161               530,924 
Amor�za�on of intangible assets 13,238                 13,202 
loss/(Profit) on sale of Fixed Assets (1,261)                  8,820 
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 414,080               17,273 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other receivable 52,475                 (102,750) 
(Increase)/Decrease in advance, deposits and prepayments (506,169)              233,125 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & other payables 297,893               (152,694) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for WPPF 41,401                 (35,101) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Je�y Dismantling provision 4,943                    80,752 
Interest Expense reversed from last year -                        (1,846) 
Income tax paid (377,489)              (296,838) 
Net cash flow generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es 1,230,888            214,671              

(0)                          

Opera�ng ac�vi�es

The cash flow statement shows the Company's cash and cash equivalents changed during the year through inflows and ou�lows. Cash
flows statement has been prepared as per IAS-7 using the Direct Method.   

Net cash inflow from opera�ng ac�vi�es arrived a�er adjus�ng opera�ng expenses paid, interest and taxes paid during the year.

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es includes cash ou�low for Investmen�n subsidiaries, purchase of property, plant and equipment
a�er adjus�ng sale proceeds.                                                                                                                                                                                       

Net cash inflow/(ou�low) financing ac�vi�es mainly for proceeds of term and short term bank loan and payment of dividend.

Gross cash received from customers arrived at a�er adjus�ng accounts receivables with revenue for the year.

Cash paid to various suppliers arrived at a�er adjus�ng cost of raw materials and consump�on cost of spares parts consumed with
creditors for trade supplies.

Cash paid for opera�ng expenses arrived at a�er adjus�ng non-cash items and creditors for revenue expenses.

During the year the company has paid BDT 377,489 thousand (2021: BDT 296,838 thousand) as income tax.

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Land and building
Furniture and equipments
Transport and vehicles

In 2023, the Company paid dividend BDT 166,840 thousand (2022: BDT 68,856 thousand) including paymen�o Capital Market
Stabliza�on Fund (CMSF)) to shareholders BDT 31,660 thousand.

36 Payment of dividend 

Reconcilia�on of opera�ng cash flow to net profit for the year
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2023 2022
The Company has got the following credit facili�es from Banks: BDT '000 BDT '000

Le�er of credit
Standard Chartered Bank 4,528,875 3,353,875 
Ci�bank N.A 1,423,965 515,715 
Bank Asia Limited 500,000 - 
BRAC Bank PLC 700,000 - 
Prime Bank PLC 950,000 - 
Na�onal Credit and Commerce Bank PLC 600,000 - 
Southeast Bank PLC 1,262,627 - 
Eastern Bank PLC. 950,000 - 
United Commercial Bank PLC 1,700,000 - 

12,615,467 3,869,590 
Short term loan facili�es

Standard Chartered Bank 300,000 475,000 
Prime Bank PLC 50,000 - 
Eastern Bank PLC 50,000 - 

400,000 475,000 
Bank Guarantee opened ended
Standard Chartered Bank 63,000 63,000 

63,000 63,000 
Grand Total 13,078,467 4,407,590

Securi�es:

2023 2022

339                       343
339                       343                      

2023 2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

109,5esoprup ssenisub s'ynapmoC rof levart ngieroF                     5,298                   
5,901                    5,298                   

40.1 Remi�ances of foreign currency:

Par�culars No. of shares BDT '000 No. of shares BDT '000
Dividend:

22,493,020        72,877,385       -                        -                       
Heidelberg Materials Asia Holding GmbH 11,784,390        36,060,233       -                        -                       
Total dividend 34,277,410        108,937,618 -                             -                       

-                      -                      -                        63,466                 
108,937,618     63,466                 

2023 2022
BDT '000 BDT '000

Raw materials 9,857,798            10,273,313         
Capital Goods 39,419                 66,942                 
Store & Spares 274,369               292,217              

10,171,585         10,632,472         

Total remi�ance
HeidelbergCement AG

20222023

The above men�oned limits are secured by Le�er of Hypotheca�on, Demand Promissory Note and Le�er of Con�nua�on.

Employment through out the year in receipt of remunera�on aggrega�ng BDT 36,000 or more 
per year

 Number of Employees 

Heidelberg Materials Netherlands Holding B.V.

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

38 Bank facili�es

39 Expenditure incurred on employees 

40 Expenditure in  equivalent  foreign currency

41 Value of Imports-at CIF basis

Salaries, wages and benefits (Note 25.4, 27 and 28)
Employee remunera�on includes all types o�enefits paid and provided both in cash and kind other than the re-imbursement of
expenses incurred for the Company's business.
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Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000 BDT '000

1
Heidelberg Material Asia 
Pte. Ltd

Group En�ty Technical 
Service 323,203           301,805           (1,298,444)        (975,241)           

2 Heidelberg Material HZAG
Group En�ty

License feee 74,532              57,273             (131,805)           (57,273)             

Heidelberg Material HZAG
Group En�ty Payment of 

expenses 1,190                375                   (1,565)                (375)                   
3

Heidelberg Material Asia 
Pte. Ltd

Group En�ty Recovery of 
expenses (2,035)               (1,252)              3,467                 5,502                 

4
PT Indocement Tunggal 
Prakarsa Tbk

Group En�ty Payment of 
expenses 3,167                -                    (6,429)                (3,262)               

5
Burta HeidelbergCement 
Sdn. Bhd

Group En�ty Recovery of 
expenses 1,792                487                   -                      380                    

6 HC Green Trading Limited Group En�ty Gypsum (4,126) 738                   -                      4,126                 
7 HC Treading Malta Ltd Group En�ty Clinker (3,430)               -                      3,430                 

Clinker 2,464,350        3,246,956       6,129                 6,709                 
Limestone 56,697              68,106             (298,695)           (16,353)             
Slag 112,485           -                      -                     

Group En�ty
HM Trading Global 
(APAC) Pte. Ltd.

8

Sl.
No.

Name of the related
party 

                     

2023 2022 2023 2022

Nature of
rela�onship

Nature 
of the 

transac�on

Transac�on during the year Receivable/ (payable) at
closing date 

42 Remunera�on of Directors, Managers and Officers

42.1 Managerial Remunera�on - Managers and Officers
Salary and bonus 176,874               155,411              
Rent 70,946                 64,462                 
Re�rement benefits 13,479                 13,267                 
Provident fund 9,827                    9,807                   
Medical 5,474                    6,326                   
Other 2,434                    4,584                   

279,034               253,857              

42.2 Paid to Directors

Board mee�ng fee 16                         17 
TA/DA 386                       275

402                      291                      

43 Related party transac�ons

During 2023, It envisaged tha�he transac�on(s) entered into with the related par�es, whether individually and/or in the aggregate would
exceed the s�pulated threshold of 10% (ten percent) o�he annual turnover o�he Company as per the audited financial statements for the
period ended 31 December 2022 during the ensuing financial year o�he Company i.e. the year ended 31 December 2023. In this connec�on,
the approval of the shareholders was sought for the said related party transac�on(s) in the Company’s Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) held on

The Ul�mate parent en�ty of the company is Heidelberg Materials AG incorporated in Germany.

Monday, 13 June 2023  and the shareholders approved the same.

During the year the company carried out a number o� ransac�ons with related par�es in the normal courses of business and "on an
arms length basis." The name o�he related par�es, the nature o�he transac�ons and their balance at year end have been set out
below:

2023 2022
BDT '000 BDT '000
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44 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management
A. Accoun�ng classifica�ons and fair values

Fair value

31 December 2023
In Taka'000

Trade and other receivables 8 449,257                    -          449,257         449,257 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 4,295,692                    -       4,295,692     4,295,692 

    4,744,949                    -       4,744,949     4,744,949 
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value
Bank overdra� 10                    -          101,039        101,039         101,039 
Loans and borrowings 15                    -       3,992,085 3,992,085     3,992,085 
Trade and other payables 19                    -       3,885,588 3,885,588     3,885,588 

                   -       7,978,712 7,978,712     7,978,712 

31 December 2022
In Taka'000
Financial assets not measured at fair value

8selbaviecer rehto dna edarT         501,732                    -          501,732         501,732 
01stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC         230,109                    -          230,109         230,109 

        731,841                    -          731,841         731,841 
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value

51sgniworrob dna snaoL                    -          799,961        799,961         799,961 
91selbayap rehto dna edarT                    -       3,588,903     3,588,903     3,588,903 

                   -       4,388,863     4,388,863     4,388,863 

The following table shows the carrying amounts offinancial assets and financial liabili�es. It does no�nclude fair value informa�on for financial
assets and financial liabili�es not measured at fair value as the carrying amount is a reasonable approxima�on of fair value.

Carrying amount

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, shor�erm investment, trade and
other receivables, bank overdra�, loans and borrowings, trade and other payables because their carrying amounts are a reasonable
approxima�on of fair values.

Note Total Total

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Other 
financial
liabili�es

Financial
assets at

amor�zed
cost

B. Financ ial  risk  management
i. Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Trade and other receivables

At 31 December, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

2023 2022
Trade and other receivables         529,813         582,974 
Provision for Impairment          (80,556)          (81,242)
Total Trade and other receivables     449,257      501,732  

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. In monitoring credit risk, debtors are
grouped according to their risk profile, i.e. their legal status, financial condi�on, ageing profile etc. Trade and other debtors are mainly related to
the company's customers. The company's exposure to credit risk on accounts receivables is mainly influenced by the customers.

The company establishes an allowance for doub�ul debts that represents its es�mate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obliga�ons, and arises principally from the company's receivables from customers.

The company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteris�cs of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate. 

Financial assets not measured at fair value
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44 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management- (con�nued)
B. Financial risk management (con�nued)

iii. Market risk

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

2023 2022
Note BDT '000 BDT '000

Fixed rate instrument 
Loans and borrowings - 173,200 
Bank overdra� 101,039 - 

101,039                              173,200                          

45 Capital management

The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings incurred in foreign currencies. The
Company's foreign currency transac�ons are denominated in USD.

The risk tha�he fair value or future cash flows offinancial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rate. At 31 December, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying amount

For the purpose o�he Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves
a�ributable to the equity holders o�he Company. The primary objec�ve o�he Company's capital managemen�s to
maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business.

No changes were made in the objec�ves, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objec�ve of market risk 
managemen�s to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while op�mizing the 
return.
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46 Segment and capacity

47 Capacity and produc�on
Installed capacity

Single shi�
Qty-M.T. 2023 2022

Line of business
Gray cement - Kanchpur 1,547,000                 1,143,204                 1,073,822                
Gray cement - Chi�agong 1,303,000                 631,079                    702,850                   
Gray cement - Muktarpur 660,000                     405,145                    430,030                   

3,510,000                 2,179,428                 2,206,702                

48 Events a�er the repor�ng period
48.1 Proposed dividend

49 Net opera�ng cash flows per share (NOCFPS)
888,032,1 swolf hsac gnitarepo teN                  214,671                   
405,65gnidnatstuo serahs yranidro fo rebmun egareva dethgieW                       56,504                      

Net opera�ng cash flows per share 21.78                         3.80                          

49.1 Net assets value (NAV) per share

658,697,3)ytiuqe 'sredloherahs yb detneserper( rebmeceD 13 ta sa stessa teN                  3,393,949                
405,65gnidnatstuo serahs yranidro fo rebmun egareva dethgieW                       56,504                      

Net assets value per share 67.20                         60.07                        

50 General
50.1

50.2 Figures appearing in these financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest Thousand BDT.

Previous year's phrases and figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary to conform to the presenta�on offinancial statements
for the year under review. 

The Company provides cemen�o customers across the country. Business ac�vi�es in which it engages and the economic environments
in which it operates are of similar nature. Its business is not segmented by products or geographical areas and its opera�ng resul�s
viewed as a whole by its management. Hence, segment informa�on is not relevant for the Company. 

Mul�ple shi�s as applicable
Actual produc�on

During the year the Board of Directors in its mee�ng held of 06 March 2024 proposed cash  dividend of 25% (2022: 10%).                                                                                                                                            

The proposed dividend is not recognized as a liability a�he balance sheet date in accordance with IAS-10 ''Events a�er the repor�ng
period."                                                                                                                                       

IAS 1 "Presenta�on of Financial Statements" also requires that dividend proposed a�er the repor�ng period but before the financial
statements are authorized for issue, be disclosed either on the face o�alance sheet as a separate component of equity or in the notes
to the financial statements. Accordingly the company is disclosing its proposed dividend in notes to the financial statements.

The provision o�he Companies Act 1994 require that dividend stated to be in respect of period covered by the financial statements
and that are proposed or declared a�er the balance sheet date but before approval o�he financial statements should be either
adjusted or disclosed. Considering the requirements of IAS and Companies Act 1994 dividend proposed have been disclosed in the
financial statements and not shown as a liability.                                                                                          
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I/We.................................................................................................................................................................................. (Name)
of.................................................................................................................................................. (Address) being a shareholder 
of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited (the “Company”) hereby appoint, Mr./Ms. ............................................................
(Name) of..................................................................................................................................................... (Address as my/our
proxy to a�end on my/our behalf at the 35th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 08 May 
2024 and at any adjourment thereof or any poll that may be taken in consequence hereof and to vote on my/our behalf as 
he/ she thinks fit on all resolu�ons.

As witness my/our hand this .................................. day.............................. 2024

_________________                _________________                         _________________                               _____________ 
Signed (Shareholder)
No. of Shares held:

Afix revenue samp

Folio/BO ID No. Signed (Proxy)
No.of Shares held:

Folio/BO ID No.

Note: The proxy form, duly filled in and stamped, must be submitted at the Corporate Office of the Company not less than
48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

......................................
Signature

Note: Please complete the attendance slip and deposit at the registration counter on the day of the meeting.

I hereby recorded my presence at the 35th Annual General Mee�ng of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited on Wednesday, 08 May 2024.

Name:............................................................................................................................................................................................

BO ID No./Folio No.

Registered Office: Tatki, Jatramora, Tarabow, Rupgonj, Narayangonj
  Corporate Office: “Symphony”  (6th & 7th Floor), Plot # SE(F) 9, Road # 142, Gulshan Avenue (South), Dhaka-1212

Registered Office: Tatki, Jatramora, Tarabow, Rupgonj, Narayangonj
  Corporate Office: “Symphony”  (6th & 7th Floor), Plot # SE(F) 9, Road # 142, Gulshan Avenue (South), Dhaka-1212

A�endance Slip of Proxy-holder

Form of Proxy
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Corporate Office
Symphony (6th & 7th Floor), Plot No. SE(F) 9
Road No. 142, Gulshan Avenue (South), Dhaka-1212
Tel: 88-02-58811691, Fax: 88-02-58812584
E-mail: info@heidelbergcementbd.com

Chittagong Factory
South Halishahar, G.P.O Box No. 372, Chittagong-4204
Tel: 88-031-2501170, Fax: 88-031-2501154

Registered Office & Kanchupur Factory
Mouza: Tatki, Post Office: Jatramora, Union: Tarabow
Police Station: Rupgonj, Dist: Narayangonj
Tel: 88-02-58815602, Fax: 88-02-58815598

Mukterpur Factory
East Mukterpur, Munshiganj
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